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ABOUT THE 2011 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT PHOTO DESIGN

For 85 years, the Port Corpus Christi has been building South Texas through economic development and
international relationships. Last year, we marked this milestone with several key events. We shared our
celebration with the community, students, employees and the world. Each section starting with the cover
represents each of the events honoring the 85" celebration.

COVER: Official 85" Milestone Poster

INTRODUCTORY SECTION: La Quinta Channel Extension Dredging Project Kickoff on September
26,2011

FINANCIAL SECTION: La Quinta Channel Extension Dredging Project Kickoff on September 26,
2011

SUPPLEMENTAL SECTION: Explore Your Port, World & Future for area students on September 21,
2011

STATISTICAL SECTION: Signing of Memorandum of Understanding with Tianjin Port Authority on
October 18,2011

CONTINUING BOND DISCLOSURE SECTION: Employee State of the Port Luncheon on
September 22, 2011

SINGLE AUDIT SECTION: Signing of a Collaboration Agreement with Panama Canal Authority on
September 14, 2011
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PORT COMMISSIONERS

L. Michael Carrell, Chairman
Mr. Carrell was appointed to the Port Commission by the City of Corpus Christi in 2002. He is President of

Frost Bank.

Richard M. Borchard, Vice-Chairman
Mr. Borchard was appointed to the Port Commission by Nueces County in 2009. He is Director of Client
Relations at the law firm of Linebarger, Goggan, Blair & Sampson.

Judy Hawley, Secretary
Mrs. Hawley was appointed to the Port Commission by San Patricio County in 2004. She is self-employed.

Franeis L. Gandy, Jr., Commissioner
Mr, Gandy was appointed to the Port Commission by the City of Corpus Christi in 2009. He is manager and
part owner of F.1. Gandy Farms, President of Gandy-Robertson, Inc., a family real estate investment business;
and managing partner of Saratoga Oaks Shopping Center.

Robert J. Gonzalez Sr., Commissioner
Mr. Gonzalez was appointed to the Port Commission by Nueces County in 2000. He is an attorney and partner
in the law firm of Gonzalez and Gonzalez L.L.P.

Robert Kostelnik, Commissioner
Mr. Kostelnik was appointed to the Port Commission by the City of Corpus Christi in 2010. He is on the Board
of Directors at HollyFrontier Corporation and Methanex Corporation.

Michael D. Scott, Commissioner

Mr. Scott was appointed to the Port Commission by Nueces County in 2011. He is the Vice-President of H & S
Constructors, Inc.

EXECUTIVE STAFF

John P. LaRue, Executive Director

Frank C. Brogan, Deputy Port Director of Engineering and Finance and Administration
Maynard J “Sandy” Sanders, Deputy Port Director of Operations and Business Development
Anthony Alejandro, Director of Operations/Harbormaster

Greg Brubeck, Director of Engineering Services

Dennis J. DeVries, Director of Finance

Sandra Terrell-Davis, Director of Human Resources

Patricia Cardenas, Director of Communications
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March 30, 2012
Port Commission

Port of Corpus Christi Authority of Nueces
County, Texas

Corpus Christi, Texas

State law requires that every navigation district or port authority publish at the close of each fiscal year a complete set of

audited financial statements. This report is published to fulfill that requirement for the year ended December 31, 2011,

Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information contained in this report,
based upon a comprehensive framework of internal control that it has established for this purpose. Because the cost of
internal control should not exceed anticipated benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute,
assurance that the financial statements are free of any material misstatements.

Collier, Johnson and Woods, P. C., Certified Public Accountants, have issued an unqualified (“clean”) opinion on the Port
of Corpus Christi Authority of Nueces County, Texas (Authority)’s financial statements for the year ended December 31,
2011. The independent auditor’s report is located at the front of the financial section of this report.

Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) immediately follow the independent auditor’s report and provides a
narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial statements. MD&A compliments this letter of

transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it.

PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT

The Authority is located along the southeastern coast of Texas on the Gulf of Mexico approximately 150 miles north of the
Mexican border. The Authority maintains one of the deepest ports along the Gulf of Mexico coast with a channel depth of
45 feet. The Authority's port facilities are part of the Port of Corpus Christi complex. The Port of Corpus Christi has been a
deep draft port since 1926. The channel is approximately 30 miles long and links the City of Corpus Christi with the Gulf

of Mexico.

The Authority is a navigation district and political subdivision of the State of Texas, having boundaries co-extensive with
those of Nueces and San Patricio Counties, Texas. The Authority operates under the provisions of Article XVI, Section 59,
of the Texas Constitution and related laws of the State of Texas, particularly Sections 60 and 62 of the Texas Water Code,
and all amendments thereto. The Authority being a navigation district and political subdivision of the State of Texas is a
separate and distinct entity of Nueces and San Patricio Counties and operates independently with its own Port Commission
as its governing body. The only relationship the Authority and Nueces County have is that in the event the Port
Commission deems it necessary to issue tax-supported bonds, it must request the Commissioners Court to call an election.
The Commissioners Court shall call the election, canvas the vote, and if the bond issue is approved, thereafter set the

necessary tax rate to service the bonds.

A Port Commission composed of seven commissioners, who serve without pay, governs the Authority. Each commissioner

serves a staggered term of three years with appointments made to the Commission each year. Three commissioners are
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appointed by the Corpus Christi City Council, the governing body of the City of Corpus Christi, three commissioners are
appointed by the Nueces County Commissioners Court, the governing body of Nueces County, and one commissioner is
appointed by the San Patricio County Commissioners Court, the governing body of San Patricio County. The executive
staff, under the leadership of the executive director, manages the operations of the Authority and assists the Commission in
planning for the future. Port Commission efforts are directed toward encouraging industrial expansion, attracting new
cargo, building and maintaining public terminals, setting operational policy and cooperating with the F ederal Government as

a local sponsor in maintaining and further improving vital navigation channels.

The Authority owns and operates public wharves, transit sheds, open storage facilities, freight handling facilities and
equipment, warehouses, a bulk material handling terminal, and a multi-purpose cruise terminal/conference center. The
Authority also owns a grain elevator that is leased to Archer Daniels Midland (ADM), a refrigerated warehouse facility that
is leased to Sam Kane Meat Processors, Inc., and cotton warehouses that are leased to Gulf Compress. In addition, the
Authority leases land, and buildings and improvements, along with maintaining areas for the placement of dredged

materials.

The Port of Corpus Christi consists not only of the Authority's docks, but also includes privately owned docks. The
Authority owns eight general cargo docks, eleven liquid bulk cargo docks, two bulk material docks, a container terminal,
two bagging facilities, a shipside grain elevator, a refrigerated warehouse, cotton warehouses and a multi-purpose cruise
terminal/conference center. All of these facilities are operated for hire on a first-come, first-serve basis, with the exception
to the shipside grain elevator, refrigerated warehouse facility, and cotton warehouses that are leased. Most of the privately
owned docks at the Port of Corpus Christi are owned by, and operated exclusively for, the various refineries, chemical
plants and other industries that line the Channel. Approximately thirty-one privately owned docks are located at the Port of
Corpus Christi, and compete directly with the Authority's docks.

The Port Commission adopts an annual budget each year, on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America for proprietary funds, as a prudent management tool. Monthly budget reports are
prepared for management to maintain proper budgetary control, and are reviewed by the Port Commission on a quarterly

basis.

LOCAL ECONOMY

The Authority continues to remain financially strong and a primary driver of the local economy. The Authority’s sound
fiscal management has allowed the Authority to remain financially stable. The Authority is currently ranked as the 5th
largest port in the United States in terms of tonnage. The Authority has served the local economy for eighty five years, and
is continually upgrading and expanding its’ facilities to better serve South Texas industry and shippers. Local Port
industries as well have made investments to upgrade and expand their facilities, to improve air and water quality, and
improve process efficiencies, or supply utilities such as electricity and steam. Local refineries have made investments that
permit them to provide clean burning gasoline during the ozone alert months and the port industries continue to support a
voluntary program has contributed to the local area’s ability to maintain its “attainment” classification with environmental

agencies.

The Authority has adopted a mission statement, which has become an integral part in the development of a strategic plan to
guide the Authority. The mission statement is as follows: "It is the mission of the Port of Corpus Christi to serve as a

regional economic development catalyst while protecting and enhancing its existing industrial base and simultaneously
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working to diversify its international maritime cargo business. In pursuit of this mission, the Port shall be guided by the
following basic principles: (1) The Port shall conduct its affairs in a positive, open and cooperative manner; (2) The Port
shall operate in a fiscally responsible manner; (3) The Port shall be a positive and proactive force in the protection of the
region's marine and water related resources; and (4) The Port shall be committed to serving its customers - present and

future.”

Economic development means attracting industrial and commercial activity, private capital and waterborne cargo shipments
that will create employment opportunities, sustaining and upgrading existing jobs, introducing new basic dollars to the area
and broadening the tax base that supports all public services. The 2008 Port Economic Impact findings reinforce the Port’s
mission statement: to be an economic catalyst for the region. Martin Associates of Lancaster, PA studied the economic
impact of the Authority operations including the Ortiz Center. The previous economic impact study for the Authority was in
2003. Five years later, the 2008 report showed similar increases. In 2003, the Authority created 39,905 jobs, generated
$195.4 million in state and local taxes, and provided $1.3 billion in business revenue. Today, the Authority creates
approximately 40,560 jobs with 10,487 direct jobs. The Authority generates 13,669 induced jobs that are the result of
purchases by the direct employees. The remainder of total jobs is comprised of 16,404 indirect jobs supported by the local
purchases by businesses supplying services or dependent upon the Authority. The 40,560 jobs provide $3.0 billion in
income (direct, induced, and indirect wages and salaries) for families throughout the Coastal Bend. Authority operations
generate $1.6 billion of revenue for businesses providing services to the Authority and port industries, and Ortiz Center.
More than $282 million was paid in state and local taxes due to activity created by the Authority. Over the five-year period,
Authority tonnage grew by over 1 million tons. While a decrease of 4 million tons was seen over the last five years n
petroleum and petrochemicals, they continue to be the Authority’s top commodity. This decline was however offset by
increases of 3.8 million tons in bulk grain exports, 873 thousand tons in ore, 306 thousand tons in break bulk cargo, and 270
thousand tons in other dry bulk cargo. This indicates that the Authority’s diversification efforts are working. The Authority
remains an economic force via its ability to provide the commercial shippers with first class channels, docks and facilities
for handling their cargo, and by providing public facilities designed to attract more tourist dollars to the area while
maintaining financial stability. Ultimately, our goal is to raise the standard of living and enhance the quality of life of

everyone in the local surrounding region.

LONG-TERM FINANCIAL PLANNING

The Authority has three major projects that will require significant funding in the future. These projects will be funded from
federal and state assistance, revenue bonds and the Authority’s unrestricted net assets of $35 million.

The Joe Fulton Trade Corridor — Phase II

The Authority will complete the construction on the final phase of the Joe Fulton Trade Corridor in the first part of 2012.
This road and rail route that has already streamlined truck and rail traffic in and out of the Authority by providing an
alternative route to access the north side of the Inner Harbor. This corridor now consists of almost 12 miles of new and
existing roadway and 7 miles of new rail that has significantly improved access to more than 2,000 acres of land along the
North side of the channel for existing and future development, including approximately 1,100 acres of land which had no
previous road access. The corridor connects two major highway components (US Highway 181 and Interstate Highway 37)

and has established more efficient intermodal links between the Port’s highway, marine, and rail transportation systems.

-vil -



Construction began in 2004 and Phase I was completed in 2008 at a cost of $50.4 million. Funding for the first phase of the
project was provided through federal and state assistance and cash reserves of the Authority. Funding to complete Phase 11
of this project was provided from $6.13 million of federal stimulus funding and $3.75 million of the Authority’s unrestricted
net assets over 2009, 2010, 2011, and 2012. Phase II rebuilt a 2.25 mile section of substandard roadway and overlaid 6.5

miles of the original Phase T work with asphalt.
Channel Improvement Project

In 2003, the Authority completed the feasibility phase of the Channel Improvement Project and in November 2007, the
project was authorized by Congress in the Water Resources Development Act (WRDA) of 2007. The authorized project
includes the following navigation and ecosystem restoration features: (1) deepening the Corpus Christi Ship Channel from
45 to 52 feet, (2) adding 200 foot barge shelves across Corpus Christi Bay, (3) widening the ship channel to 530 feet from
Port Aransas to the Harbor Bridge, (4) extending the La Quinta Ship Channel approximately 1.4 miles at 39 feet deep, and
(5) constructing ecosystem restoration features to protect endangered species, wetlands and sea grass. In December 2009,
the US Army Corps of Engineers (COE) awarded the first construction contract associated with the extension of the La
Quinta Ship Channel. This contract was for $1.1 million and constructed a 126-acre dredge material placement area for
containment of sands and clay excavated to create the La Quinta Channel extension. In 2011 the COE awarded two
additional construction contracts, one for $33.5 million to dredge the extension of the La Quinta Ship Channel and another
for $ 7.6 million to construct an ecosystem restoration project consisting of a rock breakwater and revetment adjacent to the
La Quinta Channel near Ingleside-on-the-Bay, Texas. The ecosystem restoration project is scheduled to be complete by
summer 2012, while the channel extension project is not expected to be complete until summer 2013. F ollow-on contracts

to complete the deepening and widening of the Corpus Christi Ship Channel are still pending appropriations of funding.
La Quinta Mulfi-Purpose Facility

In early 2011, in conjunction of the planned extension of the La Quinta Ship Channel, the Authority also completed the
preliminary engineering reports for the phasing of a multi-purpose dock and terminal project to be constructed on the
Authority’s 1,000 acre La Quinta property site. The envisioned multi-purpose dock and terminal facility will be able to
handle a wide variety of general cargo such as containers, military equipment, wind turbines, and steel pipe. The final
designs for an initial phase of both the water and land side infrastructure improvements are scheduled to commence in 2012

with the current target for having an operating facility by 2014/2015.

MAJOR INITIATIVES - 2011

Environmental Management System

Through the Authority’s Environmental Management System (EMS), the Authority has remained very proactive in its
efforts to not only promote economic growth but at the same time be good stewards of the environment in its daily
operations. The Authority’s program is in its 5™ year of ISO 14001 certification and its 7™ year of implementation. Each
year, the program undergoes a detailed external audit to maintain its [SO 14001 certification. The EMS program is driven
by a team of Authority employees from the various operational areas of the Port with the full support of management.
During the past 7 years, the program has identified numerous significant aspects impacting the environment. Environmental
Management Programs are established to reduce the environmental impact and to help reduce the Port’s environmental

footprint.
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Locomotive Switch Engine Repower

The Authority was awarded $1,026,058 to reduce diesel emissions through the repowering of a locomotive switch engine
utilized at the Bulk Terminal. The repower was conducted in 2011 by R.J. Corman and involved repowering the existing
1,000 horse power locomotive switch engine with two more modern industrial diesel engines totaling 1,400 horsepower.
The repower resulted in a locomotive that operates cleaner with an estimated 80% reduction in overall emissions; 35-50%
improved fuel efficiency, and has anti-idling technology. The estimated emission reductions from this repower are 31.3%
reduction in NOx emissions, 95.2% reduction in PM emissions, 95.4% reduction in hydrocarbon emissions, and 90%

reduction in CO emissions.
U.S. Naval Station Ingleside Facility

In 2005, Congress passed Base Realignment and Closure (BRAC) legislation that would close down Navy operations at
Naval Station Ingleside (NSI) and revert the entire base to the Authority. The official reversion took place on April 30,
2010. The main base consists of 483 acres of upland property, which provided facilities and support for approximately
2000 military personnel. The maritime portion of the base includes an 1100-foot concrete pier and over 2400 feet of wharf
space. This premier property is located next to the Authority’s 45 foot deep main ship channel and less than 10 miles from
the Gulf of Mexico. The Authority continues its master planning to help assess and market what would be the best use for a
total of 1012 acres comprised of Naval Station Ingleside property and adjacent Authority green field property. During
2011, NSI was the home for Taiwan Navy crews during a retrofit of two Minesweepers (MHC) that were transferred to
Taiwan from the United States. At times, over 100 crew members resided at the NSI barracks. Completion of this retrofit
program will be accomplished during 2012. NSI is also the location for the Texas State Technical College initiative that
established a wind energy related syllabus for technicians training to support the many wind farms being erected in the area.
The extensive pier and wharf space at NSI has been used for short and long term lay berth contracts in support of large
offshore oil rigs and supply vessels. These initiatives both supported the important offshore oil exploration industry and

also generated revenue for the Authority.

Military Cargo and Layberth

The Authority continues to serve as a Military Strategic Seaport for the Department of Defense. The Authority is used by
the military on an intermittent basis under the direction of the Army’s 842™ Transportation Battalion from Beaumont,
Texas, which continues to maintain administrative office space on the port. Increased commercial cargo shipments through
the port have required large portions of the terminal yards used for military deployments. A new 24.5 acre yard on the north
side of the inner harbor was constructed to support future military deployments and commercial cargoes. The Authority
serves as the home port for the USNS Benavidez throughout 2014. Due to the importance of military requirements in the
Gulf of Mexico, the Authority continues to pursue a full-time military presence stationed at the Port.

Wind Energy

Texas is the national leader in overall wind installations and is the first state to reach 10,000 MW of wind energy
installations. Texas is also home to seven of the nation’s top ten largest wind farms. The Port of Corpus Christi has formed
an integral part in the logistics chain of this renewable industry by providing optimum facilities and staging areas to all
major wind manufacturers worldwide as they strive to meet project deadlines under economic constraints. The Port’s un-
congested access to docks, highway systems and rail offer the necessary modes for complete, competitive transportation

packages with assurances of on-time deliveries to job sites. A prime example of Port efficiencies in 2011 included the
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waterborne transportation of wind components from South America then railed to the project site located in the Pacific
Northwest. These successful movements continue to be active in 2012. The Port strives to maintain its established position
within the wind energy industry for onshore projects whilst positioning for an additional wind industry to develop in the not-
so-distant future: offshore wind.

Eagle Ford Shale

The Eagle Ford Shale Play in South Texas has become a huge economic simulator for the Region, State and most
importantly the Nation. Within 3 years, this shale play has created over 13,000 jobs in the region with over $2.9 Billion in
Economic Impact. By 2020, Eagle Ford is estimated to create over 68,000 jobs with $21 Billion in Economic Impact. The
Port of Corpus Christi has played a role as the logistical and distribution center for cargo used for drilling, fracturing and
piping of materials for the region. Cargo comes into our port from Midwest and East Coast by rail and as far as China and
Brazil by ship.

The port currently has seven companies conducting transloading operations on port rail tracks creating over 100 direct and
indirect jobs and moving over 6500 rail cars annually. Proppants coming in from China, Russia and Brazil are being
trucked and railed to location in huge quantities. Soon, natural gas and oil will come in by rail or pipeline and create a new
era for the Port in terms of exporting to other countries. LNG Facilities and Oil Docks are being planned and built to
accommodate for the supply coming out. The Port of Corpus Christi proximity makes us the ideal port to handle this new

commodity and help our nation become an export leader for gas to the world.

Las Brisas Energy Center

The Las Brisas Energy Center, LLC, selected the Northside of the Authority’s Inner Harbor as the site for the development
of a state-of-the-art electric generating facility at an estimated cost of approximately $3 billion dollars. The project has
received an Air Permit from the Texas Commission of Environmental Quality (TCEQ) and has a green house gas permit
pending with the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). The circulating fluidized bed (CFB) facility was designed to
minimize its environmental impact and to be clean and efficient. It is expected to create about 1,300 direct jobs and 2,600
indirect jobs during the construction phase. Project completion is expected by early 2015 and will create from 80 to 100

direct and 150 to 175 indirect jobs once operating.
BulkTerminal

The bulk terminal’s largest storage pads have been leased to two coal exporters. In 2011, the Port handled 10 thousand
metric tons of coal. For 2012 and 2013, the terminal anticipates moving about 6.3 million tons and is expected to move in
upwards of 10 million tons/year in 2014. Rail is crucial to getting the coal to the bulk terminal for export by ship. The bulk
terminal is facing a large expansion and upgrades of up to 100 million dollars that will facilitate the export of large

quantities of coal.
On-going Construction Projects and Marketing Efforts

Projects that carry over into 2012 include several Security Grant projects that will add additional fencing, lighting, and gates
at the Port’s oil docks and general cargo areas. All of the security improvements are integrated with a command and control

system that insures that the Port and its user are being properly safeguarded.

Another significant rail project that is being designed is a new rail interchange yard at the west end of the inner harbor on
the north side of the channel adjacent to the Viola Channel. The Nueces River Rail Yard will be capable of more efficiently

handling the increasing number of unit trains and cars loading and unloading cargoes at the Port. This will be on 36 acres of
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property currently owned by the Authority. Additional projects that will carry over and be completed in 2012 are the
upgrades to the Viola Barge Dock, replacement of the bulkhead at the Viola Turning Basin, fire pressurization
improvements at the Avery Point Oil Docks, hoist and gangway support improvements at the Avery Point Oil Docks,
construction of a truck loading station and improvements to the Gantry Crane at the Bulk Terminal, and shoreline

stabilization at Pelican Island.

The growth of the Authority’s cargo tonnage is focused on its cargo diversification efforts. The Authority continues a more
aggressive marketing effort identifying new business opportunities in new markets. The Business Development Department
has a clear mandate, to diversify and obtain additional cargoes/clients to the Port. In 2011, the new team continued the
efforts to meet with innumerable freight forwarders, shipping agents and shipping lines. This trend continues with
exporters/importers domiciled in a 400 mile radius from the port. In addition, bulk cargoes; such as frac sand and proppants
have incremented and over one million tons will be handled in 2012. In addition, the department has eagerly pursued the
prospect/establishment of a regular shipping line/service to link our port with ports in Mexico, Central and South America.

The project is maturing and the first ship should be in place within the latter part of 2012.

AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

Awards

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Port of Corpus Christi Authority of Nueces County, Texas, for its
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010. This was the twenty-eighth
consecutive year that the Authority has received this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of
Achievement, a governmental unit must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial
report. This report satisfied both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. A Certificate
of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting is valid for a period of one year only. We believe our current
comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements and we are

submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.
Acknowledgments

The preparation of this comprehensive annual financial report would not have been possible without the efficient and
dedicated services of the entire staff of the Authority's Accounting Department. We would like to express our appreciation
to all members of the department who assisted and contributed to the preparation of this report. Credit also must be given to
the Port Commission for their unfailing support for maintaining the highest standards of professionalism in the management

of the Authority.
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CERTIFIED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

March 30, 2012

Port Commuissioners
Port of Corpus Christi Authority
Of Nueces County, Texas

We have audited the accompanying statement of net assets of the Port of Corpus Christi Authority as
of December 31, 2011 and the related statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets, and cash
flows for the year ended, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements as listed in the
table of contents. These basic financial statements are the responsibility of the Authority's management. Our
responsibility ts to express an opinion on these basic financial statements based on our audit. The statement of
net assets and the related statement of revenue, expenses and changes in net assets, and cash flow for the year
ended December 31, 2011 were audited by other auditors whose report dated April 5, 2011, expressed an
unqualified opinion on those statements.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provided a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Port of Corpus Christi Authority, as of December 31, 2011 and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 30,
2012 on our consideration of the Port of Corpus Christi Authority’s internal control over financial reporting
and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations and contracts and grant agreements
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the mternal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our
audit.



Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
- management’s discussion and analysis and the other required supplementary information on pages 3 through
I'Tand 32 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of
the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it
to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide
us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Port of Corpus Christi Authority’s financial statements as a whole. The introductory
section, supplemental schedules, and the statistical section listed in the table of contents are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. The accompanying
schedule of expenditures of federal financial awards page 77 is presented for purposes of additional analysis as
required by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Organizations and is also not a required part of the financial statements. The supplemental
schedules and the schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards are the responsibility of management
and were derived from and relate directly to the u nderlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. The introductory section and statistical
section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements
and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.
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As management of the Port of Corpus Christi of Nueces County, Texas (Authority), we offer readers as an introduction to the
Authority’s financial statements, this narrative overview and analysis of the Authority’s activities and financial performance for the
years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010. This discussion and analysis is designed to assist the reader in focusing on the significant
financial issues and activities and to identify any significant changes in financial position. We encourage readers to consider the
information presented here in conjunction with Authority’s financial statements taken as a whole. All amounts, unless otherwise

indicated, are expressed in whole dollars.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
e The net assets of the Authority at December 31, 2011 were $371,906,226. Of this amount, $35,889,132 is considered

unrestricted net assets, and may be used to meet the Authority’s current ongoing obligations to employees and creditors.
e The Authority’s total net assets increased $18,105,352 or 5.1% over the prior year. Income before contributions produced an
increase in net assets of $12,703,079, while capital contributions provided an increase of $5,402,273.
e  The Authority’s total debt decreased by $1,278,999 in 2011, the result of scheduled debt service payments.
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Authority’s basic financial statements are comprised of the financial statements and the notes to the financial statements. The
basic financial statements can be found on pages 12 through 31 of this report. Since the Authority is comprised of a single enterprise
fund, no fund level financial statements are shown. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic

financial statements themselves.

Basic Financial Statements

The basic financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Authority’s finances, in a manner similar

to a private-sector business. These statements offer short and long-term financial information about its activities.

The Statement of Net Assets includes all of the Authority’s assets and liabilities, and provides information about the nature and
amounts of investments in resources (assets) and the obligations to Authority creditors (liabilities). The assets and liabilities are
presented in a format, which distinguishes between current and long-term assets and liabilities. Net assets increase when revenues
exceed expenses. An increase in assets without a corresponding increase to liabilities, results in increased net assets, which indicates

an improved financial position.

The Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets accounts for all of the Authority’s current year’s revenues
and expenses. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event occurs, regardless of timing of related cash flows.
Thus revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future periods (e.g.,
earned but unused vacation leave).

The Statement of Cash Flows primary purpose is to provide information about the Authority’s cash receipts and cash payments during
the reporting period. The statement reports cash receipts, cash payments, and net changes in cash resulting from operations, investing
and financing activities and provides answers to such questions as where did cash come from, what was cash used for, and what was

the change in cash balance during the reporting period.
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the financial statements.
QOther Information

In addition to the financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required supplementary information
and other supplemental information.  Statistical information presented on a multi-year basis and other information including
disclosures for compliance with the Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15¢2-12 are presented for the purpose of additional
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analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Statistical and other information can be found on pages 39
through 69 of this report.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

The fundamental question that is most asked of business is, as a whole “Are you better off or worse off as a result of the year’s
activities?” The Statement of Net Assets, and the Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets report information
about the Authority’s activities in a way that will help answer this question. These two statements report the net assets of the
Authority and changes in them. You can think of the Authority’s net assets — the difference between assets and liabilities — as one
way to measure financial health or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the Authority’s net assets are one indicator

of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating.

Statement of Net Assets

The Statement of Net Assets serves over time as a useful indicator of the Authority’s financial health or position. It distinguishes
assets and liabilities as to their expected use for operations, restricted purposes and capital investment.

The following condensed Statement of Net Assets provides an overview of the Authority’s net assets as of December 31, 2011, 2010
and 2009:

2011-10 2010-09
2011 2010 2009 Change Change
Assets
Current assets $ 45223671 % 38,876,561 $ 27,595,569 $ 6,347,110 § 11,280,992
Restricted assets 1,924,226 1,927,662 1,747,632 (3,436) 180,030
Capital assets 351,899,915 341,020,588 233,222,853 10,879,327 107,797,735
Other non-current assets 911,553 1,562,408 3,077,237 (650,855) (1,514,829)
Total Assets 399,959,365 383,387,219 265,643,291 16,572,146 117,743,928
Liabilities
Current liabilities 9,495,675 9,542,935 6,915,890 (47,260) 2,627,045
Long-term debt, net of current portion 5,997,641 7,331,640 8,607,003 (1,333,999) (1,275,363)
Deferred income, net of current portion 10,032,366 10,489,407 10,946,447 (457,041) (457,040)
Other liabilities 2,527,457 2,222,363 2,265,728 305,094 (43,365)
Total Liabilities 28,053,139 29,586,345 28,735,068 (1,533,206) 851,277
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 334,092,868 321,470,695 211,984,713 12,622,173 109,485,982
Restricted 1,924,226 1,927,662 1,747,632 (3,436) 180,030
Unrestricted 35,889,132 30,402,517 23,175,878 5,486,615 7,226,639
Total Net Assets $ 371,906,226 § 353,800,874 $ 236,908,223 § 18,105,352 § 116,892,651
2011 - 2010

The Authority’s assets exceeded its liabilities at the close of 2011 by $371,906,226. This is an increase over 2010 of $18,105,352. By
far, the largest portion of the Authority’s net assets (89.8%) reflects its investment in capital assets, less related debt used to acquire
those assets that is still outstanding. The Authority uses these capital assets to provide services to its customers and consequently,
these assets are not available for future spending. Although the Authority’s investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt,
it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves
cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. An additional portion of the Authority’s net assets (0.5%) represents resources that are
subject to external legal restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets (9.7%) may be used to

meet the Authority’s ongoing obligations to employees and creditors.
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2010 - 2009

The Authority’s assets exceeded its liabilities at the close of 2010 by $353,800,874. This is an increase over 2009 of $116,892,651.
By far, the largest portion of the Authority’s net assets (90.9%) reflects its investment in capital assets, less related debt used to
acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The Authority uses these capital assets to provide services to its customers and
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the Authority’s investment in capital assets is reported net
of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital
assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. An additional portion of the Authority’s net assets (0.5%) represents
resources that are subject to external legal restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets

(8.6%) may be used to meet the Authority’s ongoing obligations to employees and creditors.

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, Change in Net Assets

The Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Change in Net Assets serve as a measure to determine how successful the Authority was
during the past year in recovering its costs through its user fees and other charges, as well as to its profitability and credit worthiness.
The following Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Change in Net Assets summarize the operations of the Authority for the years
ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009:

2011-10 2010-09
2011 2010 2609 Variance Variance
Revenues
Operating revenues:
Wharfage $ 27,410,252 $ 26,567,587 $ 24,826,670 % 842,665 $ 1,740,917
Dockage 8,948,217 8,138,326 7,319,259 809,891 819,067
Security fees 6,319,747 6,170,288 3412485 149,459 2,757,803
Freight handling 2,387,583 2,316,667 2,428,621 70,916 (111,954)
Building and land rentals 6,411,552 4,417,518 3,924,060 1,994,034 493,458
Conference center services 1,814,456 1,679,885 2,007,407 134,571 (327,522)
Warehouse handling charges 368,950 426,093 596,168 (57,143) (170,075)
FTZ user fees 302,750 337,000 326,000 (34,250) 11,000
Other 4,735,454 2,226,488 1,585,220 2,508,966 641,268
Total operating revenues 58,698,961 52,279,852 46,425,890 6,419,109 5,853,962
Interest revenue 467,494 478,291 584,849 (10,797) (106,558)
Federal and other grant assistance 169,966 60,806 17,570 109,160 43,236
Donation of personal property 4,500 225,825 - (221,325) 225,825
Gain(Loss) on disposal of capital assets 3,727,517 (8,643) 7,266 3,736,160 (15,909)
Total Revenues 63,068,438 53,036,131 47,035,575 10,032,307 6,000,556
Expenses
Operating expenses:
Maintenance and operations 22,760,814 20,248,511 20,697,782 2,512,303 (449,271)
General and administrative 13,830,284 14,939210 15,029,743 (1,108,926 (90,533)
Depreciation 13,381,562 12,165,114 10,060,645 1,216,448 2,104,469
Total operating expenses 49,972 660 47,352 835 45,788,170 2,619,825 1,564,665
Interest expense and fiscal charges 392,699 450,602 504,030 (57,903) (53,428)
Amortization of bond issuance costs - 10,743 20,735 (10,743) (9,992)
Total Expenses 50,365,359 47,814,180 46,312,935 2,551,179 1,501,245
Income Before Contributions 12,703,079 5,221,951 722,640 7,481,128 4,499,311
Capital Contributions 5,402,273 111,670,700 2,090,573 (106,268,427) 109,580,127
Changes in Net Assets 18,105,352 116,892,651 2,813,213 (98,787.299) 114,079,438
Total Net Assets, Beginning of Year 353,800,874 236,908,223 234,095,010 116,892,651 2,813,213
Total Net Assets, End of Year $ 371,906,226 $ 353,800,874 § 236,908,223 § 18,105,352 § 116,892,651
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Revenues
2011 -2010

Operating revenues in 2011 increased by $6,419,109 or 12.3% over 2010. Other revenues increased by $2.5 million due to the receipt
in 2011 of $1.4 million in depletion charges for the deposit of dredge materials into the Authority’s dredge placement areas and the
forfeiture of a $1 million non-refundable deposit for the termination of a sales contract on the Naval Station Ingleside property.
Building and land rentals have increased $2 million over 2010 due to new leases at the dry cargo docks and storage areas, the bulk
terminal facility, Naval Station Ingleside, and the LaQuinta property. Wharfage revenues increased $843 thousand over 2010, and this
increase was at the dry cargo docks and bulk terminal facility. The increase is largely attributed to an increase in the movement of
wind turbines at the dry cargo docks and an increase in the movement of petroleum coke and barite at the bulk terminal facility.
Dockage revenues have also increased $810 thousand compared to 2010, mainly at the bulk terminal facility and Naval Station

Ingleside.
2010 - 2009

Operating revenues in 2010 increased by $5,853,962 or 12.6% from 2009. The most significant increase was in security fees of $2.8
million over 2009. In April, a harbor safety fee was imposed to assist in offsetting the costs of the Authority’s marine patrol unit, and
this fee has generated $2.5 million in 2010. In addition, wharfage revenues increased $1.7 million in 2010, and of this increase, $1.5
million was at the public and private oil docks. This increase is largely attributed to an increase in the movement of petroleum
products of 7.5% over 2009. An increase in vessel traffic of 12% has also led to an increase in dockage fees of $819 thousand. Other
revenues increased $641 thousand. Fireboat fees in 2010 increased by $185 thousand compared to 2009. In 2009, the Authority’s fire
fighting response vessel sustained damage and was out of service for three months. In addition, the Authority received insurance

reimbursement of $350 thousand in 2010 to offset these damage repairs made in 2009.

Expenses
2011 - 2010

Operating expenses in 2011 increased $2,619,825 or 5.5% over 2010. The major cost increases are as follows:

@ Depreciation $ 1,216,448
® Major maintenance projects 942,934
@ Utilities 647,115
® Facilities maintenance 582,420

Security improvements of $10.2 million and improvements to the Authority’s oil docks of $3.2 million are the most significant reason
for the increase in depreciation expense. Major maintenance projects in 2011 included the participation in the Harbor Bridge Lighting
Project and repairs to the refrigerated warehouse facility. The increase in utilities and facilities maintenance are a result of the

operation and maintenance of the Naval Station Ingleside facility.

Employee services have decreased $1 million over 2010 due to the implementation of an early retirement program and a reduction in
force that eliminated ten positions.

2010 — 2009

Operating expenses in 2010 increased $1,564,665 or 3.4% over 2009. In April 2010, Naval Station Ingleside (NSI) reverted to the

Authority and the costs of the facility have been the most significant factor for the increase in expenses.
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The major cost increases at NSI are as follows:

® Maintenance $ 844,785
® Utilities 612,248
€ Insurance 366,443
® Security services 268,939
® Depreciation 1,911,663

The Authority has made an effort to reduce or maintain expenditure levels in 2010 to offset the impact of NSI. The Authority
implemented an early retirement program and a reduction in force, eliminating 10 full time positions, and made reductions in
administrative overhead costs. Major maintenance project expenses decreased $1.9 million, partly due to budget reductions, but also
to the Authority’s cost share in 2009 of $1.1 million for the maintenance dredging of Jewell Fulton and La Quinta channels by the
U.S. Army Corp of Engineers.

Capital Grants and Contributions

2011-2010

Capital grants and contributions decreased by $106,268,427 from 2010. The Naval Station Ingleside was closed by the Base

Realignment and Closure Commission in April, 2010 and the Authority was the recipient of the properties valued at $101,671,427.
The Authority is the recipient of a number of federal and state grants from a variety of programs. These grant funds are recorded on
the basis of project expenditures made. As projects are advanced and expenditures incurred, grant funds are requested on a

reimbursement basis and then recognized. Major capital grants and contributions at December 31, 2011 include the following:

® Security Enhancements $ 4,312,361
© National Clean Diesel Funding Assistance 579,542
® Joe Fulton International Trade Corridor 510,370

2016 - 2009
Capital grants and contributions increased by $109,580,127 from 2009. The Authority is the recipient of a number of federal and state

grants from a variety of programs. These grant funds are recorded on the basis of project expenditures made. As projects are
advanced and expenditures incurred, grant funds are requested on a reimbursement basis and then recognized. In addition to the
receipt of capital grants, the Authority was the recipient of the Naval Station Ingleside properties when the base was closed by the

Base Realignment and Closure Commission in April. Major capital grants and contributions at December 31, 2010 include the

following:
® Donation of Naval Station Ingleside $ 101,671,427
® Security Enhancements 5,024,930
® Joe Fulton International Trade Corridor 4,974,343

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

2011 - 2010

The Authority’s investment in capital assets as of December 31, 2011, amounts to $351,899,915 (net of accumulated depreciation).
This investment in capital assets includes port facilities, elevator and bulk terminal facilities, machinery and equipment, property and
buildings, furniture and equipment, intangibles and construction in progress. This amount represents a net increase (additions net of
retirements and depreciation) of $10,879,327 or 3.2%. Additional information regarding the Authority’s capital assets can be found in

Note 4 to the financial statements on page 21.
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Major capital asset additions during 2011 include the following:

® Security Enhancements $ 10,208,596
® (il Dock Upgrades and Improvements 3,158,853
@ Reconstruction of Navigation Boulveard 2,227,226
® Storage Yard Expansions 451,483

In March, 2011, the Authority entered into a surplus sales agreement with Flint Hills Resources Corpus Christi, LLC for the sale of
3.34 acres on the east side of Naval Station Ingleside, the building thereon, and the small craft pier adjacent to the property for $8
million and realized a gain on the sale of $2.4 million. In June, 2011, the Authority received $1.26 million from Durlame, LLC for the
sale of 5.1 acres of land east and southeast of Whataburger Field which had been deemed surplus property and realized a gain on the
sale of $1.26 million.

2010 —2009

The Authority’s investment in capital assets as of December 31, 2010, amounts to $341,020,588 (net of accumulated depreciation).
This investment in capital assets includes port facilities, elevator and bulk terminal facilities, machinery and equipment, property and
buildings, furniture and equipment, intangibles and construction in progress. This amount represents a net increase (additions net of
retirements and depreciation) of $107,797,735 or 46.2%. Additional information regarding the Authority’s capital assets can be found

in Note 4 to the financial statements on page 21.

Major capital asset additions during 2010 include the following:

€& Naval Station Ingleside $101,671,427

Shoreline Erosion Protection-Pelican Island 1,245,114
@ Renovations of Oil Dock Houses 705,771
€  Purchase of Security Boats 669,350
@ Improvements to the Bulk Loader 611,821

The following table summarizes the Authority’s capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) as of December 31, 2011, 2010 and
2009:

2011-10 2010-09
2011 2010 2009 Change Change
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 60,245,357 $ 60,346,608 $  40,215339 § (101,251) § 20,131,269
Channel & waterfront improvements 18,868,431 18,868,431 18,868,431 - -
Intangibles 50,000 50,000 50,000 - -
Construction in progress 43,870,087 30,866,201 16,898,775 13,003,886 13,967,426
123,033,875 110,131,240 76,032,545 12,902,635 34,098,695
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Port facilities 129,477,145 135,604,906 91,029,637 (6,127.761) 44,575,269
Buildings & improvements 79,423,876 82,744,445 51,991,005 (3,320,569) 30,753,440
Machinery and equipment 19,758,496 12,374,198 13,803,430 7,384,298 (1,429,232)
Intangibles 206,523 165,799 366,236 40,724 (200,437)
228,866,040 230,889,348 157,190,308 (2,023,308) 73,699,040
Net Capital Assets $ 351,899,915 § 341,020,588 $§ 233,222,853 § 10,879,327 § 107,797,735
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Long-term Debt

As of December 31, 2011, the Authority had long-term debt outstanding of $7,317,641. This amount is comprised of general revenue
bonds. The Authority’s debt decreased through its annually scheduled debt service payments during 2011 and 2010.  Additional
information regarding the Authority’s long-term debt can be found in Note 6 to the financial statements on pages 22-23. The
following table summarizes the Authority’s long-term debt outstanding as of December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009:

2011-10 2010-09

2011 2010 2009 Change Change
General revenue bonds $ 7317641 $ 8,596,640 $ 9,817,003 $ (1,278,999) $ (1,220,363)
Total Long-term Debt $ 7,317,641 $ 8,596,640 § 9,817,003 §$ (1,278,999) § (1,220,363)

The Authority maintains an A3 rating from Standard and Poor’s Corporation and an A rating from Moody’s Investor Service on its
general revenue bonds. In accordance with the Authority’s general revenue bond covenants, the Authority is required to maintain a
revenue bond coverage of at least 1.25 times the average debt service requirements of its’ general revenue bonds. As of December 31,
2011 the Authority’s revenue bond coverage was 15.66 times, compared to 10.51 times as of December 31, 2010.

ECONOMIC OUTLOOK

The basic financial statements emphasize the Authority’s intent to recover the cost of its activities through its user fees and other
charges. In 2011, the Authority experienced overall positive operating results, despite a decline in tonnage throughput and resulting
ship/barge activity from 2010. Specifically, this downturn in tonnage was the direct result of a decline in petroleum tonnage that in
turn leads to a decrease in related revenues. This decline however was offset by an increase in dry cargo and dry bulk tonnages and

related revenues.

The effect of the Eagle Ford Shale Play in South Texas has initially had a negative impact on the import of petroleum crude. Several
local refineries are in the process of replacing some of their previously imported crude with domestically produced crude from Eagle
Ford Shale. In the long-term, the Authority feels that as the Eagle Ford Shale production increases and there is an excess capacity, we

will begin to see a reversal of this trend and an increase in the export of petroleum crude.

The Authority reviews its tariff structure on a continuous basis, as well as it looks at ways to reduce its overall operating costs while
fulfilling its mission as the primary economic catalyst of the region. During 2011, the Authority continued to work on a number of
diversification initiatives that will be carried forward over the next few years. These initiatives include the following:

® The Authority continues its master planning to help assess and market what would be the best use for a total of 1012 acres
comprised of Naval Station Ingleside property and adjacent Authority green field property. During 2011, NSI was the home
for Taiwan Navy crews during a retrofit of two Minesweepers (MHC) which were transferred to Taiwan from the United
States. At times, over 100 crew members resided at the NSI barracks. Completion of this retrofit program will be
accomplished during 2012. NSI is also the location for the Texas State Technical College initiative that established a wind
energy related syllabus for technicians training to support the many wind farms being erected in the area. The extensive pier
and wharf space at NSI has been used for short and long term lay berth contracts in support of large offshore oil rigs and
supply vessels. These initiatives both supported the important offshore oil exploration industry and also generated revenue
for the Authority.

@® In early 2011, in conjunction with the planned extension of the La Quinta Ship Channel, the Authority also completed the
preliminary engineering reports for the phasing of a multi-purpose dock and terminal project to be constructed on the
Authority’s 1,000 acre La Quinta property site. The envisioned multi-purpose dock and terminal facility will be able to

handle a wide variety of general cargo such as containers, military equipment, wind turbines, and steel pipe. The final designs
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for an initial phase of both the water and land side infrastructure improvements are scheduled to commence in 2012 with the

current target for having an operating facility by 2014-2015.

® The Authority continues to serve as a Military Strategic Seaport for the Department of Defense. The Authority is used by the
military on an intermittent basis under the direction of the Army’s 842" Transportation Battalion from Beaumont, Texas,
which continues to maintain administrative office space at the port. Increased commercial cargo shipments through the port
have required large portions of the terminal yards to be used for military deployments. A new 24.5 acre yard on the north
side of the inner harbor was constructed to support future military deployments and commercial cargos. The Authority
serves as the home port for the USNS Benavidez through 2014. Due to the importance of military requirements in the Gulf

of Mexico, the Authority continues to pursue a full-time military presence stationed at the Port.

@ Texas is the national leader in overall wind installations and is the first state to reach 10,000 megawatts of wind energy
installations. Texas is also home to seven of the nation’s top ten largest wind farms. The Port of Corpus Christi has formed
an integral part in the logistics chain of this renewable industry by providing optimum facilities and staging areas to all major
wind manufacturers worldwide as they strive to meet project deadlines under economic constraints. The Port’s un-congested
access to docks, highway systems and rail offer the necessary modes for complete, competitive transportation packages with
assurances of on-time deliveries to job sites. A prime example of Port efficiencies in 2011 included the waterborne
transportation of wind components from South America then railed to the project site located in the Pacific Northwest. These
successful movements continue to be active in 2012. The Port strives to maintain its established position within the wind
energy industry for onshore projects while positioning for an additional wind industry to develop in the not-so-distant future:

offshore wind.

@ The Eagle Ford Shale Play in South Texas has become a huge economic stimulator for the Region, State and most
importantly the Nation. Within 3 years, this shale play has created over 13,000 jobs in the region with over $2.9 billion in
Economic Impact. By 2020, Eagle Ford is estimated to create over 68,000 jobs with $21 billion in Economic Impact. The
Port of Corpus Christi has played a role as the logistical and distribution center for cargo used for drilling, fracturing and
piping of materials for the region. Cargo comes into our port from the Midwest and East Coast by rail and as far as China and
Brazil by ship. The port currently has seven companies conducting transloading operations on port rail tracks creating over
100 direct and indirect jobs and moving over 6500 rail cars annually. Proppants coming in from China, Russia and Brazil are
being trucked and railed to location in huge quantities. Soon, natural gas and oil will come in by rail and pipe and create a
new era for the Port in terms of exporting to other countries. LNG Facilities and Oil Docks are being planned and built to
accommodate for the supply coming out. The Port of Corpus Christi proximity makes us the ideal port to handle this new

commodity and help our nation become an export leader for gas to the world.

® The Las Brisas Energy Center, LLC, selected the Northside of the Authority’s Inner Harbor as the site for the development of
a state-of-the-art electric generating facility at an estimated cost of $3 billion dollars. The project has received an Air Permit
from the Texas Commission of Environmental Quality (TCEQ) and has a green house gas permit pending with the
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). The circulating fluidized bed (CFB) facility was designed to minimize its

environmental impact and to be clean and efficient. It is expected to create about 1,300 direct jobs and 2,600 indirect jobs
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during the construction phase. Project completion is expected by early 2015 and will create from 80 to 100 direct and 150 to

175 indirect jobs once operating.

® The bulk terminal’s largest storage pads have been leased to two coal exporters. In 2011, the Port handled 10 thousand
metric tons of coal. For 2012 and 2013, the terminal anticipates moving about 6.3 million tons and is expected to move in
upwards of 10 million tons/year in 2014. Rail is crucial to getting the coal to the bulk terminal for export by ship. The bulk
terminal is facing a large expansion and upgrades of up to 100 million dollars that will facilitate the export of large quantities

of coal.

@  Another significant project that is being designed is a new rail interchange yard at the west end of the inner harbor on the
north side of the channel adjacent to the Viola Channel. The Nueces River Rail Yard will be capable of more efficiently
handling the increasing number of unit trains and cars loading and unloading cargos at the Port. This will be on 36 acres of

property currently owned by the Authority.
REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Authority’s finances for all those with an interest in its finances.
Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be
addressed to the Authority’s Director of Finance, 222 Power Street, Corpus Christi, TX 78401.



PORT OF CORPUS CHRISTI AUTHORITY
OF NUECES COUNTY, TEXAS

Statement of Net Assets
December 31, 2011 and 2010

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2)

Investments (Note 2)

Accounts receivable (net of allowance for doubtful accounts
0f $97,328 and $52,463 for 2011 and 2010, respectively)

Interest receivable

Intergovernmental receivable

Notes receivable, current portion (Note 3)

Inventory

Prepaid expenses

Total Current Assets

NON-CURRENT ASSETS:

RESTRICTED ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2)
Other assets (Note 11)

Total Restricted Assets

CAPITAL ASSETS:
Capital assets, not being depreciated (Note 4)
Capital assets, being depreciated, net (Note 4)

Capital Assets, Net

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS:
Notes receivable, net of current portion (Note 3)
Net pension asset (Note 7)
Total Non-Current Assets
Total Non-Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Deferred income

Deferred lease income, current portion (Note 6)
Current maturities of long-term debt (Note 6)
Accrued interest payable

Capital leases, current portion (Note 6)
Compensated absences, current portion (Note 6)

Total Current Liabilities

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Long-term debt, net of current maturities (Note 6)
Deferred lease income, net of current portion (Note 6)
Capital leases, net of current portion (Note 6)
Compensated absences, net of current portion (Note 6)
Net OPEB obligation (Note 8)
Total Non-Current Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted:
Debt service
Channe! improvements
Law enforcement
Naval Station Ingleside economic development
Unrestricted
TOTAL NET ASSETS

See accompanying notes to financial statements

2011 2010
§ 27771301 § 19,783,191
5,535,450 5.490,614
7,282,729 7,077,108
3,341 4031
1,951,569 3,700,172
844,764 831,827
858,441 846,071
976,076 1,143,547
45,223,671 38,876,561
1,704,132 1,704,468
220,094 223,194
1,924,226 1,927,662
123,033,874 110,131,240
228,866,041 230,889,348
351,899,915 341,020,588
. 960,804
911,553 601,604
911,553 1,562,408
354,735,694 344,510,658
399,959,365 383,387,219
4,902,426 4,135,109
704,512 681,907
1,045,655 1,951,004
457,040 457,040
1,320,000 1,265,000
29321 34,034
521 9,764
1,036,200 1,009,077
9,495,675 9,542,935
5,997,641 7,331,640
10,032,366 10,489,407
- 521
2,112,877 1,933,491
414,580 288,351
18,557,464 20,043,410
28,053,139 29,586,345
334,092,868 321,470,695
1,671,259 1,671,617
225 225
32,648 32,626
220,094 223,194
35,889,132 30,402,517
$371.906226 $ 353,800,874




PORT OF CORPUS CHRISTI AUTHORITY

OF NUECES COUNTY, TEXAS

Statement of Revenues, Expenses
and Changes in Net Assets
For the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

OPERATING REVENUES:
Wharfage
Dockage
Security fees
Freight handling
Building and land rentals
Conference center services
Warehouse handling charges
FTZ user fees
Other

Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Maintenance and operations
General and administrative
Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):

Interest revenue

Federal and other grant assistance
Donation of personal property

Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets
Interest expense and fiscal charges

Net Non-Operating Revenues

Income Before Capitul Grants and Contributions

CAPITAL GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS

Change in Net Asseis

Total Net Assets , Beginning of Year, as Restated

Total Net Assets, End of Year

2011 2010
$ 27410252 $ 26,567,587
8,948,217 8,138,326
6,319,747 6,170,288
2,387,583 2,316,667
6,411,552 4,417,518
1,814,456 1,679,885
368,950 426,093
302,750 337,000
4,735,454 2,226,488
58,698,961 52,279,852
22,760,814 20,248,511
13,830,284 14,939,210
13,381,562 12,165,114
49,972,660 47,352,835
8,726,301 4,927,017
467,494 478,291
169,966 60,806
4,500 225,825
3,727,517 (8,643)
(392,699) (461,345)
3,976,778 294,934
12,703,079 5,221,951
5,402,273 111,670,700
18,105,352 116,892,651

353,800,874

236,908,223

$ 371,906,226

$ 353,800,874

See accompanying notes to financial statements



PORT OF CORPUS CHRISTI AUTHORITY

OF NUECES COUNTY, TEXAS

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended December 31,2011 and 2016

2011 2010
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from customers $ 57,098,771 $ 51,110,478
Cash payments to suppliers for goods & services (14,974,495) (18,804,311)
Cash payments to employees for services (21,493,974) (16,614,016)
Cash payments to and received from other operating sources (3,144) 30,530
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 20,627,158 15,722,681
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Federal funds received as fiscal agent - 8,301
Operating grants received 166,305 32,060
Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities 166,305 40,361
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (28,969,494) (17,546,101)
Capital grants and contributions 7,156,852 8,046,282
Proceeds from sale of assets 9,318,787 42,200
Principal payment of capital debt (1,271,807) (1,219,061)
Interest payments on capital debt (411,242) (464,021)
Net Cash Used for Capital and Related Financing Activities (14,176,904) (11,140,701)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest on investments 74,076 21,629
Proceeds from sale and maturities of investments 5,493,700 -
Purchase of investments (5,534,828) (5,490,000)
Principal payments on notes receivable 947,867 1,726,070
Interest received on notes receivable 390,400 452,017
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities 1,371,215 (3,290,284)
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 7,987,774 1,332,057
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year, Including
Restricted Accounts 21,487,659 20,155,602
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year, Including Restricted Accounts $ 29,475,433 $ 21,487,659
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating income $ 8,726,301 $ 4,927,017
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net
cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation expense 13,381,562 12,165,114
Interest expense (non-capital) (169) (1.301)
Donations of personal property 7,600 2,631
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (205,621) (1,952,541)
Intergovernmental receivable (2,315) (2,804)
Inventories (12,370) (53,019)
Prepaid items 167,471 (186,303)
Net pension asset (309,949) (283,601)
Accounts payable (116,976) 602,665
Accrued expenses 51,356 (277,533)
Deferred income (905,349) 1,281,035
Deferred lease income (457,041) (457,040)
Financing leases (2,957) (8,038)
Net OPEB obligation 126,229 135,802
Compensated absences 179,386 (169,403)
Total Adjustments 11,900,857 10,795,664
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 20,627,158 $ 15,722,681
Noncash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activities:
Amortization of issue costs and discount on revenue bonds $ 13,999 $ 380
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets 3,727,517 (8,643)
Donations of personal property 7,600 223,194
Donations of capital assets - 101,671,427

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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PORT OF CORPUS CHRISTI AUTHORITY Notes to Financial Statements
OF NUECES COUNTY, TEXAS December 31,2011 and 2010

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The financial statements of the Port of Corpus Christi Authority of Nueces County, Texas (Authority) have been
prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as
applied to government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting
body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the
Authority's accounting policies are described below.

GENERAL HISTORY OF THE PORT OF CORPUS CHRISTI AUTHORITY

The Nueces County Navigation District No. 1 was created November 30, 1922, by an order of the Commissioners Court
of Nueces County, Texas after an election duly held on October 31, 1922, at which time the establishment of said district
was submitted to the qualified taxpaying voters of Nueces County, Texas. The territorial boundaries of the District were
made co-extensive with those of Nueces County. In 2003, Senate Bill 1934 was passed that allowed for the annexation
of San Patricio County into the territorial jurisdiction of the Authority. The District was organized under Article I,
Section 52, of the Constitution of the State of Texas, but has since been transferred to and is operating under Article
XVI, Section 59, of the Texas Constitution and related laws of the State of Texas, particularly Sections 60 and 62 of the
Texas Water Code and all amendments thereto. The Authority being a navigation district and political subdivision of
the State of Texas is a separate and distinct entity from Nueces County and operates independently with its own Port
Commission as its governing body. The only relationship the Authority and Nueces County have is that in the event the
Port Commission deems it necessary to issue tax supported bonds, it must request the Commissioners Court to call an
election. The Commissioners Court shall call the election, canvas the vote, and if the bond issue is approved, thereafter
set the necessary tax rate to service the bonds. The original property, plant and equipment of the Authority were
acquired with funds from the sale of bonds, the interest and sinking funds being provided from ad valorem taxes levied
on the property within Nueces County, Texas. Additions to the property, plant and equipment of the Authority have
been made with surplus funds arising from the operations of the Authority facilities, grants from the Federal
Government, proceeds of general revenue bonds, and improvement bonds supported by ad valorem tax levies.

On May 20, 1981, the Governor of the State of Texas signed into law a bill changing the legal name of the Nueces
County Navigation District No. 1 to the Port of Corpus Christi Authority of Nueces County, Texas.

REPORTING ENTITY

In evaluating how to define the Authority for financial reporting purposes, management has considered all potential
component units. The decision to include or exclude a potential component unit in the reporting entity was made by
applying the criteria set forth in GAAP. GASB Statement No. 14 defines the reporting entity as the primary government
and those component units for which the primary government is financially accountable. Financial accountability is
defined as appointment of a voting majority of the component unit’s board, and either (a) the ability to impose will by
the primary government, or (b) the possibility that the component unit will provide a financial benefit to or impose a
financial burden on the primary government. Based upon the application of these criteria, the following is a brief review
of the component unit addressed in defining the Authority's reporting entity.

COMPONENT UNIT

The Industrial Development Corporation (IDC) was organized by the Authority under the State of Texas Development
Corporation Act of 1979. The IDC is a non-profit corporation that issues industrial development revenue bonds to
promote and develop commercial, industrial and manufacturing enterprises and to promote and encourage employment
and public welfare. The issuance of any such bonds is adopted by the Board of Directors (Board) of the IDC, and
approved by the Texas Economic Development Commission (TEDC) and the Port Commission. Net earnings of the
JDC may be distributed to the Authority by action of the Board or upon dissolution of the IDC. The IDC is considered a
blended component unit of the Authority as members of the Board of the IDC is comprised of two members of the Port
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PORT OF CORPUS CHRISTI AUTHORITY Notes to Financial Statements
OF NUECES COUNTY, TEXAS December 31, 2011 and 2010

Commission and staff of the Authority, and the Authority is able to impose its will on the IDC, as defined in
Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity. The financial
statements of the IDC are not material to the financial statements of the Authority, and have not been included in the
basic financial statements. The condensed financial statement information of the IDC follows:

2011 2010
Total Net Assets $§ 3,445 § 3,000
Change in Net Assets $ 444 § 301

The financial statements of the IDC may be obtained from the Authority’s Director of Finance at 222 Power Street,
Corpus Christi, Texas 78401.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The Authority operates as an enterprise fund to report on its financial position and the results of its operations.
Enterprise funds are used to account for operations (a) that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private
business enterprises where the intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of
providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user
charges; or (b) where the governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred,
and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other

purposes.

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement focus.
Measurement focus is a term used to describe which transactions are recorded within the various financial statements.
Basis of accounting refers to when transactions are recorded regardless of the measurement focus applied. All enterprise
funds are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus, whereby all assets and all liabilities
associated with the operation of these funds are included on the balance sheet. Proprietary fund equity is classified as
net assets. Enterprise fund operating statements present increases (e.g., revenues) and decreases (e.g., expenses) in net
total assets.

The accrual basis of accounting is utilized by enterprise funds. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned
and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.
The principal operating revenues of the Authority’s enterprise fund are charges to customers for the use of facilities and
services provided.  Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-

operating revenues and expenses.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other
Governmental Entities that use Proprietary Fund Accounting, the Authority applies all FASB Statements and
Interpretations, APB Opinions and ARB’s issued on or before November 30, 1989 unless they conflict with or contradict
GASB pronouncements. The Authority has elected to only apply GASB pronouncements after November 30, 1989.

An annual budget for the Authority is adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles for
proprietary funds, as a prudent management tool. Monthly budget reports are prepared for management to maintain
proper budgetary control, and are reviewed by the Port Commission on a monthly basis.
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PORT OF CORPUS CHRISTI AUTHORITY Notes to Financial Statements
OF NUECES COUNTY, TEXAS December 31,2011 and 2010

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The Authority’s cash and cash equivalents consists of cash on hand, cash held on deposit with financial institutions in
demand deposit accounts, and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of
acquisition.

INVESTMENTS

State statutes authorize the Authority to invest in obligations of the United States Treasury, or its agencies and
instrumentalities; direct obligations of the State of Texas or its agencies; obligations of states, agencies, counties, cities
and other political subdivisions of any state having a rating of not less than A; certificates of deposits, prime domestic
banker’s acceptances; certain commercial paper, certain mutual funds; fully collateralized repurchase agreements, and
public funds investment pools.

Investments that mature within one year of acquisition are stated at cost or amortized cost. Investments with the
remaining maturity of more than one year at the time of purchase are carried at fair value. Any realized gains and losses
in fair value are reported in the operations of the current period.

INVENTORY AND PREPAID ITEMS

Inventory is valued at cost utilizing the first in first out method. Inventory consists of expendable materials used in the
operation and maintenance of port facilities.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property constructed or acquired by purchase is stated at cost. Authority policy has set the capitalization threshold for
reporting capital assets at $5,000. Contributed assets are stated at cost, if available, or estimated fair market value on the
date received. Net interest costs, if material, are capitalized on major construction projects during the construction
period. No interest was capitalized for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the following useful lives:

Port facilities 10-50 Years
Buildings and improvements 5-50 Years
Machinery and equipment 3-50 Years
Intangibles 3-5 Years

RESTRICTED ASSETS

Certain resources set aside for the repayment of the Authority’s revenue bonds are classified as restricted assets on the
balance sheet because their use is limited by applicable bond covenants. The Authority has entered into escrow
agreements with the United States Army Corp of Engineers to fund the Authority’s cost share of channel improvements
and maintenance. These funds are maintained in separate bank accounts and are specifically restricted for that purpose.
All revenues received from participating in Federal equitable sharing of forfeited properties are restricted for use by the
United States Department of Justice Guide to Equitable Sharing of Federally Forfeited Property for State and Local
Law Enforcement Agencies or the United States Department of Treasury Guide of Equitable Sharing For Foreign
Countries and Federal, State and Local Law Enforcement Agencies. Revenues received from participating in the State
sharing of forfeited properties are also restricted for use as defined by state statutes. The Authority receives an annual
allocation payment from the Law Enforcement Officer Standards and Education (LEOSE) account and that cash is
restricted until spent for qualified expenses related to the continuing education of law enforcement personnel.

When an expense is incurred for purposes for which restricted and unrestricted net assets are available, the Authority’s
policy is to apply restricted net assets first.
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COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Authority employees are granted vacation at rates of 10 to 25 days per year and may accumulate up to a maximum of 20
to 50 days, depending on their length of employment. Upon termination, employees are paid for any unused
accumulated vacation. Sick leave accumulates at the rate of 12 days per year. Upon termination for any reason other
than for cause, employees are paid for any unused sick leave up to a maximum of 60 days. Compensated absences are
accrued when incurred.

DEFERRED INCOME

Foreign trade zone user fees, non-refundable deposits for events at the Solomon P. Ortiz Conference and Convention
Center, and operating lease payments are recognized as income over the term of related agreements. Amounts received
but not yet earned are reflected as deferred income in the accompanying balance sheets.

CONCENTRATION OF REVENUES
The Authority’s operating revenues are subject to risk, because of their concentration in the petroleum industry. Four
customers from the petroleum industry made up over 62 percent of the Authority’s wharfage and dockage revenue base
for 2011, as compared to 66 percent for 2010. This risk is further enhanced by the fact that petroleum cargo continues to
be the Authority’s top commodity representing nearly 81 percent of the total cargo tonnage moved through the Authority
in 2011, compared to 84 percent in 2010.

ESTIMATES
Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing the financial statements. Those estimates and assumptions
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported

revenues and €xpenses.

RECLASSIFICATIONS
Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year amounts to conform to the current year presentation.

2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The Authority’s investments at December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

2011 2010
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Carrying Fair Maturity Carrying Fair Maturity
Inves tment Type Value Value (Days) Value Value (Days)
Certificates of Deposit $ 5,535450 $ 5,535,450 332 $ 5,490,614 $ 5,490,614 331
Local government pool 28,764,942 28,764,942 1 20,113,066 20,113,066 1
Total 34,300,392 34,300,392 25,603,680 25,603,680
Short-term investments included in
cash and cash equivalents 28,764,942 28,764,942 20,113,066 20,113,066
Equity in Total Inves tments $5,535,450 $5,535,450 $5,490,614 $5,490,614
Portfolio weighted average maturity 54 72

INTEREST RATE RISK

In accordance with the Authority’s investment policy, the Authority manages its exposure to declines in fair values by
limiting the weighted average maturity of its investment portfolio to one year or less.
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CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. The Authority’s
investment policy states that all investments will be of high quality with no perceived default risk. The Public Funds
Investment Act (“PFIA”), Chapter 2256 of the Texas Government Code governs the types of investments in which the
Authority may invest. The Authority’s policy for managing credit risk, in compliance with state law, allows the
Authority’s to invest in obligations of the United States government, its agencies, and instrumentalities with 2 maximum
stated maturity of two years, excluding mortgage backed securities; fully insured or collateralized certificates of deposit
issued by banks doing business in Texas, with a maximum stated maturity of one year; fully collateralized repurchase
agreements, with a maximum stated maturity of 90 days except for bond fund flex repurchase agreements, which will
match expenditure plans on the bond funds; AAA Rated, constant dollar local government investment pools; money
market mutual funds registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission whose assets consist exclusively of
obligations of the United States Treasury, its agencies or instrumentalities and repurchase agreements backed by those
securities; and interest bearing accounts in banks doing business in Texas.

Public funds investment pools in Texas are established under the authority of the Interlocal Cooperation Act, Chapter 79
of the Texas Government Code, and are subject to the provisions of the PFIA. In addition to other provisions of the
PFIA designed to promote liquidity and safety of principal, the PFIA requires pools to: (1) have an advisory board
composed of participants in the pool and other persons who do not have a business relationship with the pool and are
qualified to advise the pool; (2) maintain a continuous rating of no lower than AAA or AAA-m or an equivalent rating
by at least one nationally recognized rating services; and (3) maintain the market value of its portfolio within one half of
one percent of the value of its shares.

CONCENTRATION OF RISK

The Authority’s investment policy places no limit on the amount the Authority may invest in any one issuer. As of
December 31, 2011, the Authority’s investment portfolio consisted of the following:

- investment in one AAAm rated local government investment pool representing 83.9 percent, and

- investment in collateralized certificates of deposit representing 16.1 percent.

At December 31, 2010, the Authority’s investment portfolio consisted of the following:
- investment in one AAAm rated local government investment pool representing 78.6 percent, and
- investment in collateralized certificates of deposit representing 21.4 percent.

CUSTODIAL CREDIT RISK — DEPOSITS AND CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT

Custodial risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Authority’s deposits may not be returned to it. The
Investment Policy of the Authority requires that all time and demand deposits of the Authority be secured by pledged
collateral with a market value equal to or greater than 102% of the principal plus accrued interest less an amount insured
by FDIC. At December 31, 2011 the carrying amount of the Authority’s cash and cash equivalents was $29,469,183. In
accordance with the Authority’s policy, the total bank deposits were covered by federal depository insurance (FDIC) or
were secured by collateral held by the Authority’s agent in the Authority’s name. The cash funds and short-term
investments included in cash and cash equivalents are not subject to collateralization requirements.

At December 31, 2010 the carrying amount of the Authority’s cash and cash equivalents was $21,481,409. The total
bank deposits were covered by federal depository insurance (FDIC) or were secured by collateral held by the
Authority’s agent in the Authority’s name.
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OF NUECES COUNTY, TEXAS

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2011 and 2010

3. NOTES RECEIVABLE

Notes Receivable as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 are summarized as follows:

2011 2010
$12,000,000 Note Receivable due in annual
principal installments; $844,764 due in 2012;
interest at 8.0%. $ 4,048,169 § 4,879,996
Less: Principal Prepayments 3,203,405 3,087,365
Principal Outstanding 844,764 1,792,631
Less: Current Maturities 844,764 831,827
Notes Receivable - Net S - $ 960,804
Total note receivable requirements as of December 31, 2011, are as follows:
Principal Interest Total
2012 $ 844,764 $ 67,581 $§ 912,345
Thereafter - -
Total $ 844,764 $ 67,581 $ 912,345

Pursuant to a Construction and Installment Sale Agreement (Agreement) entered into on May 3, 1994, the Authority

agreed to construct crude storage facilities on premises leased to an Authority User, and then sell the facilities to the
User. On January 12, 1995, the Authority sold their undivided right, title and interest in the crude storage facilities to
the User, and a Promissory Note (Note) was executed made payable to the Authority by the User in the amount of

$12,000,000.

The Note is due and payable in twenty-one annual installments, the first installment being interest only and the

remaining twenty annual installments of equal principal and interest, at a rate of 8§ percent, unless sooner paid. All

payments are applied first to interest with the remainder, if any, applied to unpaid principal.

Note payments are based on revenue received from wharfage fees collected by the Authority for crude oil moving across
the Authority’s Oil Dock 1 to the User’s crude storage facilities, and fifty percent of dockage fees collected by the
Authority for ships berthing at the Authority’s Oil Dock 1 for purpose of delivering crude oil to the User’s crude storage
facilities. Monthly amounts are credited to a debt service account that is used to make scheduled note payments when

due. In the event there are insufficient funds in the debt service account to meet scheduled note payments, the User is

required to make up any shortfall. Should a surplus exist, the excess is applied in inverse order against principal last

coming due on the note.

In 2011 and 2010, the Authority credited $1,338,267 and $2,178,087, respectively of

applicable revenue received from wharfage and dockage fees collected to the debt service account.
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4. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2011 was as follows:

Beginning Transfers and Ending
Balance Additions Retirements Balance

Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $ 60,346,608 $ 124,199 $ 225450 $ 60,245,357

Channel and waterfront improvements 18,868,431 - - 18,868,431

Intangibles 50,000 - - 50,000

Construction in progress 30,866,201 13,003,885 - 43,870,086
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 110,131,240 13,128,084 225,450 123,033,874
Capital assets, being depreciated:

Port facilities 232,656,018 5,517,973 5,222,614 232,951,377

Buildings and improvements 110,576,099 1,211,924 718,413 111,069,610

Machinery and equipment 29,338,641 10,105,356 289,676 39,154,321

Intangibles 1,651,656 225,328 - 1,876,984
Total capital assets, being depreciated 374,222,414 17,060,581 6,230,703 385,052,292
Less: accumulated depreciation for

Port facilities 97,051,112 6,471,822 48,703 103,474,231

Buildings and improvements 27,831,654 4,004,077 189,997 31,645,734

M achinery and equipment 16,964,443 2,721,059 289,677 19,395,825

Intangibles 1,485,857 184,604 - 1,670,461
Total accumulated depreciation 143,333,066 13,381,562 528,377 156,186,251
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 230,889,348 3,679,019 5,702,326 228,866,041
Total capital assets, net $ 341,020,588 $ 16,807,103 $ 5927776 $ 351,899,915

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2010 was as follows:

Beginning Transfers and Ending
Balance Additions Retirements Balance

Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $ 40,215,339 $ 20,165,114 $ 33,845 $ 60,346,608

Channel and waterfront improvements 18,868,431 - - 18,868,431

Intangibles 50,000 - - 50,000

Construction in progress 16,898,775 13,967,426 - 30,866,201
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 76,032,545 34,132,540 33,845 110,131,240
Capital assets, being depreciated:

Port facilities 182,044,334 50,611,684 - 232,656,018

Buildings and improvements 76,155,243 34,420,856 - 110,576,099

Machinery and equipment 28,584,933 848,612 94,904 29,338,641

Intangibles 1,651,656 - - 1,651,656
Total capital assets, being depreciated 288,436,166 85,881,152 94,904 374,222 414
Less: accumulated depreciation for

Port facilities 91,014,697 6,036,415 - 97,051,112

Buildings and improvements 24,164,238 3,667,416 - 27,831,654

Machinery and equipment 14,781,503 2,260,846 77,906 16,964,443

Intangibles 1,285,420 200,437 - 1,485,857
Total accumulated depreciation 131,245,858 12,165,114 77,906 143,333,066
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 157,190,308 73,716,038 16,998 230,889,348
Total capital assets, net $ 233,222,853 $ 107,848,578 $ 50,843 $ 341,020,588
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5. LEASES
OPERATING LEASES

The Authority leases to others certain land and improvements. These leases are classified as operating leases in
accordance with the criteria of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 13. As of December 31, 2011,
minimum lease payments under these operating leases that have initial or remaining non-cancelable lease terms in

excess of one year are as follows:

Years Ending
2012 $ 5,544,907
2013 4,752,243
2014 3,740,668
2015 3,021,042
2016 1,818,669
Thereafter 17,559,550
Total $ 36,437,079

CAPITAL LEASES

The Authority has entered into lease agreements as lessee for financing the acquisition of computer equipment. These
lease agreements qualify as capital leases in accordance with SFAS No. 13 and, therefore, have been recorded at the
present value of their future minimum lease payments as of the inception date of the lease. Certain assets acquired
through these capital leases did not meet the Authority’s capitalization threshold criterion, and therefore were expensed.

The assets acquired through capital leases are as follows:

Assets:
Capitalized:
Machinery & Equipment $ 36,026
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 36,026
Capitalized, net -
Expensed 15,975
Total $ 15,975

The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum lease payments as of December 31,

2011 are as follows:

Total minimum lease payments due in 2012 $ 524
Less: Amount representing interest 3
Present value of minimum lease payments $ 521

6. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

LONG-TERM DEBT

On March 26, 2002, the Authority issued revenue bonds, Series 2002-A, in the amount of $10,390,000 to reimburse for
the costs associated with the acquisition, construction, and equipment of a refrigerated warehouse facility and Series
2002-B, in the amount of $7,865,000 to reimburse for the costs associated with the acquisition, construction, and
equipment of a multipurpose cruise/terminal conference facility known as the “Congressman Solomon P. Ortiz
International Center”. These bonds will be repaid from the pledged revenues of the Authority. Pledged revenues, as
defined by the bond resolutions include all of the Authority’s revenues and expenses other than those related to a)
interest expense on revenue bonds, and b) depreciation.
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A statement of changes in long-term debt for the year ended December 31, 2011, is as follows:

Beginning Ending Current
Balance Additions Reductions Balance Portion
Revenue bonds $ 8,515,000 $ - $ 1,265000 $  7250,000 $ 1,320,000
Accumulated Accretion 81,640 - 13,999 67,641 -
Total $ 8,596,640 $ - $ 1,278,999 § 7,317,641 § 1,320,000

A statement of changes in long-term debt for the year ended December 31, 2010, is as follows:

Beginning Ending Current
Balance Additions Reductions Balance Portion
Revenue bonds $ 9,725,000 $ - $ 1,210,000 $ 8,515,000 $ 1,265,000
Accumulated Accretion 92,003 - 10,363 81,640 -
Total $ 9,817,003 $§ - $ 1,220363 § 8,596,640 § 1,265,000

Long-term debt as of December 31,2011 and 2010 is summarized as follows:

2011 2010
Revenue Bonds:
$10,390,000 2002-A first lien revenue bonds, collateralized by a first lien on
pledged revenues ofthe Authority, due in annual principal installments of
$755,000 to $910,000 through 2016; interest at 4.7 percent to 5.2 percent. $ 4145000 $§ 4,865,000
$7,865,000 2002-B first lien revenue bonds, collateralized by a first lien on
pledged revenues ofthe Authority, due in annual principal installments of
$565,000 to $680,000 through 2016; interest at 4.4 percent to 4.9 percent. 3,105,000 3,650,000
Total Revenue Bonds 7,250,000 8,515,000
Accumulated Accretion 67,641 81,640
Total Revenue Bonds and Accumulated Accretion 7,317,641 8,596,640
Less Current Maturities 1,320,000 1,265,000
Long-term Debt - Net $ 5997641 $ 7,331,640
Total debt service requirements as of December 31, 2011 are as follows:
Principal Interest Total
2012 $ 1,320,000 $ 351,850 $ 1,671,850
2013 1,380,000 291,505 1,671,505
2014 1,445,000 226,345 1,671,345
2015 1,515,000 155,955 1,670,955
2016 1,590,000 80,640 1,670,640
Thereafter - - -
Total $ 7,250,000 $ 1,106,295 §$ 8,356,295

The Authority is required to maintain adequate insurance coverage as defined in the applicable covenants of the revenue
bonds, Series 2002 A & B. As of December 31, 2011, the Authority had adequate insurance coverage and all insurance
premiums had been paid.

DEFERRED LEASE INCOME

The Authority entered into a lease agreement with Gulf Compress. Under the terms of the lease, Gulf Compress
constructed 550,000 square feet of cotton warehouses on property owned by the Port at the proposed site of the LaQuinta
Container Terminal Facility. On January 21, 2005, the cotton warehouses were completed and ownership was
transferred to the Authority in consideration of a thirty year prepaid lease. Prepaid lease rentals will be amortized over
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the lease term as follows:

Years Ending
2012 $ 457,040
2013 457,040
2014 457,040
2015 457,040
2016 457,040
Thereafter 8,204,206
Total $ 10,489,406

CAPITAL LEASES
The Authority has entered into lease agreements as lessee for financing the acquisition of computer equipment.

A statement of changes in capital leases for the year ended December 31, 2011, is as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2011 and 2010

Beginning Ending Current

Balance Additions Reductions Balance Portion
Capital leases $ 10285 $ - $ 9,764 $ 521 § 521
Total $ 10,285 §$ - $ 9,764 $ 521 8§ 521

A statement of changes in capital leases for the year ended December 31, 2010, is as follows:

Beginning Ending Current

Balance Additions Reductions Balance Portion
Capital leases $ 27384 $ - $ 17,099 § 10,285 $ 9,764
Total $ 27,384 § - $ 17,099 $ 10,285 § 9,764

Capital leases as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 is summarized as follows:

2011 2010
Capital leases $ 521§ 10,285
Less Current Portion 521 9,764
Capital leases - Net $ - $ 521

COMPENSATED ABSENCES

A statement of changes in compensated absences for the year ended December 31, 2011, is as follows:

Beginning Ending Current

Balance Additions Reductions Balance Portion
Vacation $ 898,186 §$ 694,553 $ 640,560 $ 952,179 % 640,560
Sickleave 2,044,382 548,156 395,640 2,196,898 395,640
Total $ 2,942568 $ 1,242,709 $ 1,036,200 $ 3,149,077 § 1,036,200

A statement of changes in compensated absences for the year ended December 31, 2010, is as follows:

Beginning Fnding Current

Balance Additions Reductions Balance Portion
Vacation $ 972,052 $ 696,907 % 770,773 $ 898,186 §$ 654,899
Sickleave 2,264,718 412,286 632,622 2,044,382 354,178
Total $ 3,236,770 § 1,109,193 $ 1,403395 $§ 2942.568 $ 1,009,077
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Compensated Absences as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 are summarized as follows:

2011 2010
Vacation $ 952,179 $ 898,186
Sickleave 2,196,898 2,044,382
Total Compensated Absences 3,149,077 2,942,568
Less Current Portion 1,036,200 1,009,077
Compensated Absences - Net $ 2,112,877 § 1,933,491

OPEB OBLIGATION

A statement of changes in OPEB Obligation for the year ended December 31, 2011, is as follows:

Beginning Ending Current

Balance Additions Reductions Balance Portion
OPEB Obligation $ 288351 $ 153,658 $ 27,429 $ 414580 $ -
Total $ 288,351 $§ 153,658 § 27,429 $ 414,580 $ -

A statement of changes in OPEB Obligation for the year ended December 31, 2010, is as follows:

Beginning Ending Current
Balance Additions Reductions Balance Portion
OPEB Obligation $ 152,549 § 201,594 $ 65,792 $ 288,351 % -
Total $ 152,549 § 201,594 § 65,792 § 288,351 $ -

OPEB Obligations as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 is summarized as follows:

2011 2010
OPEB Obligation $ 414,580 $ 288,351
Less Current Portion - -
OPEB Obligation - Net $ 414,580 $ 288,351

7. PENSION PLAN

Plan Description

The Authority provides pension, disability, and death benefits for all its full-time employees through a nontraditional
defined benefit pension plan in the state-wide Texas County and District Retirement System (TCDRS). TCDRS is
responsible for the administration of the statewide agent multiple-employer public employee retirement system
consisting of 618 defined benefit pension plans which function similarly to cash balance-account plans. TCDRS in the
aggregate issues a comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) on a calendar year basis. The CAFR is available upon
written request from the TCDRS Board of Trustees at P.O. Box 2034, Austin, Texas 78768-2034.

The plan provisions are adopted by the governing body of the Authority, within the options available in the state statutes
governing TCDRS (TCDRS Act). Members can retire at ages 60 and above with 10 or more years of service or with 30
years regardless of age or when the sum of their age and years of service equals 80 or more. Members are vested after
10 years but must leave their accumulated contributions in the plan to receive any employer-financed benefit. Members
who withdraw their personal contributions in a lump sum are not entitled to any amounts contributed by the employer.

Benefit amounts are determined by the sum of the employee’s contributions to the plan, with interest, and employer-
financed monetary credits. The level of these monetary credits is adopted by the governing body of the Authority within
the actuarial constraints imposed by the TCDRS Act so that the resulting benefits can be expected to be adequately
financed by the employer’s commitment to contribute. At retirement, death, or disability, the benefit is calculated by
converting the sum of the employee’s accumulated contributions and the employer-financed monetary credits to a
monthly annuity using annuity purchase rates prescribed by the TCDRS Act.
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Funding Policy

The Authority has elected the Annually Determined Contribution Rate plan provisions of the TCDRS Act. The plan is
funded by monthly contributions from both employee members and the employer based on the covered payroll of
employee members. Under the TCDRS Act, the contribution rate of the Authority is actuarially determined annually.
The actuarially determined rate for the calendar year 2011 was 7.33 percent and for the calendar year 2010 was 8.10
percent, however the governing body of the Authority adopted the rate of 11 percent for the calendar year 2011 and
2010. The contributions made by the Authority in excess of the actuarially determined rate are classified as net pension
asset and reflected as other non-current assets.

A statement of changes in net pension asset for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 is as follows:

2011 2010
Annual Required Contribution $ 771,971 $ 959,095
Interest on Net Pension Asset 48,128 25,440
Adjustment to Actuarially Determined Rate 28,436 34,338
Annual Pension Cost 848,535 1,018,873
Contributions Made 1,158,484 1,302,474
Increase in Net Pension Asset 309,949 283,601
Net Pension Asset - Beginning of Year 601,604 318,003
Net Pension Asset - End of Year $911.,553 $601,604

The deposit rate payable by all employee members for the calendar year 2011 and 2010 was 7 percent as adopted by the
governing body of the Authority. The employee deposit rate and the employer contribution rate may be changed by the
governing body of the employer within the options available in the TCDRS Act. Employee and Authority contributions
were $737,217 and $1,158,484, respectively for the year ended December 31, 2011, and $828,848 and $1,302,474,
respectively for the year ended December 31, 2010.

Annual Pension Cost

For the Authority’s year ended December 31, 2011, the annual pension cost for the TCDRS plan for its employees was
$771,971 and the actual contributions for its employees were $1,158,484. Three-year annual trend information on annual
pension cost is as follows:

Annual Percentage of

Years Ended Pension APC Net Pension
December 31, Cost Contributed Asset
2011 $ 771,971 150.07% $ 911,553
2010 959,095 135.80% 601,604
2009 935,773 133.98% 318,003

The required contribution was determined as part of the December 31, 2010 actuarial valuation using the entry age
actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions at December 31, 2010 included (a) 8 percent investment rate of return
(net of administrative expenses), and (b) projected salary increases of 5.4 percent. Both (a) and (b) included an inflation
component of 3.5 percent. The actuarial value of assets was determined using techniques that spread the effects of
short-term volatility in the market value of investments over a ten-year period. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability
is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on a closed basis. The remaining amortization period at
December 31, 2010 was 6.7 years.

As of December 31, 2010, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was 82.45 percent funded. The actuarial
accrued liability for benefits was $26,372,629, and the actuarial value of assets was $21,744,295 resulting in an
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unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $4,628,334. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees
covered by the plan) was $11,840,675, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 39.09 percent.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as RSI following the notes to the financial statements, presents multi-year
trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the
actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

8. POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS

GASB Statement No. 45 Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postretirement Benefits Other than
Pensions (OPEB), established new accounting standards for postretirement benefits. The new standard does not require
funding of OPEB expense, but any differences between the annual required contribution (ARC) and the amount funded
during the year is to be recorded in the employer’s financial statements as an increase (or decrease) in the net OPEB
obligation. The Authority is required to obtain an actuarial valuation at least once every three years in accordance with
GASB 45 standards. The Authority’s latest valuation is dated as of January 1, 2011.

Plan Description

The Authority provides postretirement healthcare benefits to eligible retired employees and their spouses through
provisions enacted by the authority of the Port Commission. At December 31, 2011, three former employees were
eligible for these benefits. The Authority funds a portion of the premiums for health insurance. Continuation of these
benefits and the Authority’s contributions are dependent on periodic authorization by the Port Commission. The health
insurance benefits provided to retirees are the same as those offered to active employees. The supplied benefits include
hospital, doctor, dental and prescription drug charges.

Employees, who have reached age 62, may continue coverage under the Authority’s healthcare plan as a retiree until the
age of 65.

The plan is not accounted for as a trust fund, as an irrevocable trust has not been established to fund the plan. The plan
does not issue a separate financial report.

Funding Policy

The required contribution is based on a projected pay-as-you-go basis, which is expected to continue. The cost of retiree
health and life benefits, recorded on a pay-as-you-go basis was $27,429 for the year ended December 31, 2011 and
$65,792 for the year ended December 31, 2010.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution
of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with parameters of GASB Statement 45. The
ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and
amortize any unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities (UAAL) or funding excess over a period not to exceed thirty years.
The following table shows the components of the Authority’s annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually
contributed to the plan and changes in the Authority’s net OPEB obligation. The end of year net OPEB Obligation is
shown as a non-current liability on the Statement of Net Assets.
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A statement of the calculation of the annual OPEB contribution and the change in the net OPEB obligation for the years
ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 is as follows:

2011 2010

Determination of Annual Required Contribution

Normal Cost at Year End $ 93,900 $ 118,405

Amortization of UAAL 65,882 85,909

Annual Required Contribution (ARC) 159,782 204,314
Determination of Net OPEB Obligation

Annual Required Contribution 159,782 204,314

Interest on Prior Year Net OPEB Obligation 11,534 6,102

Adjustment to ARC (17,658) (8,822)

Annual OPEB Cost 153,658 201,594

Contributions Made (27,429) (65,792)

Increase in Net OPEB Obligation 126,229 135,802
Net OPEB Obligation - Beginning of Year 288,351 152,549
Net OPEB Obligation - End of Year $ 414,580 $ 288,351

The end of year net OPEB Obligation is shown as a non-current liability on the Statement of Net Assets.

The Authority’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and net OPEB
obligation for the current and three preceding years were as follows:

Annual Percentage of Net
Years Ended Discount OPEB OPEB Cost OPEB
December 31, Rate Cost Contributed Obligation
2011 4.00% $ 153,658 17.85% $ 414,580
2010 4.00% 201,594 32.64% 288,351
2009 4.00% 199,525 75.24% 152,549
Funding Status and Funding Progress
The schedule of funding progress for the current and three preceding years is as follows:
Unfunded
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial UAAL as
Valuation Actuarial Accrued Accrued Annual % of
Date, Value of Discount Liabilities Liabilities Funded Covered Covered
January 1 Assets Rate (AAL) (1) (UAAL)(2) Ratio Payroll Payroll
2011 $ - 4.0% $ 1,075,827 § 1,075,827 0.0% $ 10,531,666 10.2%
2010 - 4.0% 1,430,581 1,430,581 0.0% 11,840,675 12.1%
2009 - 4.0% 1,408,938 1,408,938 0.0% 11,397,962 12.4%

(1) Actuarial Accrued Liability determined under the projected unit credit cost method.
(2) Actuarial Accrued Liability less Actuarial Value of Assets.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the
probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment,
mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual
required contributions of the Authority are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past
expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required
supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about
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whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities
for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the
employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the
historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial
methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in
actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the
calculations.

The actuarial cost method used to determine the OPEB obligation is computed using the Projected Unit Credit Actuarial
Cost Method which consists of the following cost components:

e The Normal Cost is the Actuarial Present Value of benefits allocated to the valuation year.
e The Actuarial Liability is the Actuarial Present Value of benefits accrued as of the valuation date.
e  Valuation Assets are equal to the market value of assets as of the valuation date, if any.

e Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) is the difference between the Actuarial Accrued Liability and
the Valuation Assets. The amortization of UAAL as of January 1, 2011 is calculated as a level dollar over 27
years on a closed basis.

The latest actuarial valuation for the Authority was completed as of January 1, 2011. The significant assumptions
underlying the actuarial calculations are as follows:

Actuarial Cost Method

Discount Rate for Valuing Liabilities
Mortality Rates

Healthcare Cost Trend

Projected Unit Credit

Pay-as-you-go: 4.0%

RP2000 with Projection Scale AA

8.1% in the first year

7.5% in the second year

6.8% in the third year

6.2% in the fourth year

Grade down to 4.7% after the seventy-second year
4.9% all years

Percentage Trend by Year based on:

Short Term-Milliman’s Health Cost Guidelines
Long Term-Getzen Model

Dental Cost Trend
Healthcare Inflation Rate

Withdrawal Rates*

Disability Rates*

Retirement Rates *

Employee Coverage

Spousal Coverage

Spouse Age Difference
Administrative Expense Load
Medical Benefit Costs by Age

Based on Years of Service

Based on Age

Based on Age

100% eligible for benefits elect coverage

85% eligible for benefits elect coverage

Same as employee

5.0% on Gross per Capita Claims Costs

Varies based on projected average monthly cost for
claims and administration based on experience

* Based on the 2009 pension valuation for the Texas County and District Retirement System
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9. CONSTRUCTION AND IMPROVEMENT COMMITMENTS

At December 31, 2011, the Authority had remaining contractual construction and improvement commitments of
approximately $2,894,050. These commitments are being financed through operating revenues and capital grants.

10. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

LITIGATION

From time to time, the Authority is subject to routine litigation incidental to its operations. Management believes that
the results of any claims or litigation will not materially affect the Authority’s financial position.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Authority is self-insured for $4,000,000 on property and $50,000 on general liability claims annually and has
purchased excess loss policies for claims in excess of these amounts. The Authority has established a self-funded health
and dental plan (plan) for its employees and dependents. A specific stop loss policy is in force for individual plan claims
in excess of $100,000 annually, and an aggregate stop loss policy is in force for annual aggregate claims in excess of
approximately $2,481,986. The Authority is covered for worker’s compensation claims through the Texas Municipal
League Risk Pool. Prior to 2005, the Authority was self-insured for worker’s compensation and estimated remaining
worker’s compensation claims are reflected below. The Authority has made no significant changes in its insurance
coverage from coverage in the prior year. In the past three years the Authority has had no settlements that exceeded

insurance coverage.

A liability for unpaid claims is reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the loss can be
reasonably estimated. The Authority’s liability is an estimate and includes an amount for claims that have been incurred
but not reported (IBNR). The methodology used to determine the liability is based on recent claim seitlement trends,
including frequency and amount of payouts, and other factors such as inflation, changes in legal doctrines and damage
awards. At December 31, 2011, the liability of $194,817 is comprised of estimated health claims of $184,050 and
estimated worker’s compensation claims of $10,767. At December 31, 2010, the liability of $207,216 is comprised of
estimated health claims of $195,987 and estimated worker’s compensation claims of $11,229.

Changes in the balances of claims liabilities as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

2011 2010
Unpaid claims, beginning of fiscalyear § 207,216 § 210,487
Incurred claims (including IBNRs) 2,230,325 2,242,105
Claims payments (2,242,724) (2,245,376)
Unpaid claims, end of fiscal year $ 194817 § 207,216

FACILITIES FINANCING BONDS

The Authority and IDC have entered into agreements with five unrelated entities to finance construction of pollution
control, environmental, and solid waste disposal facilities. To accomplish this, the Authority and IDC acted as issuers of
facilities financing revenue bonds in the original amount of $625,395,000. The bonds are secured solely by the facilities
and installment sales agreements, and the Authority and IDC assumed no current or future obligation for repayment of
the bonds. The installment sales agreements were entered into with the entities for an amount equal to the outstanding
bonds to secure repayment. The proceeds of the bonds were received and used by the entities and are repaid when due
directly by the entities. At December 31, 2011, facilities financing revenue bonds outstanding amounted to
$589,495,000.
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11. REVERSION OF NAVAL STATION INGLESIDE PROPERTY

The Authority, by Special Warranty Deed, conveyed land to the United States of America (“Navy”) for the purpose of
construction of Naval Station Ingleside (NSI) with the provision that should the subject property no longer be used for
maritime purposes by the Department of Defense, the subject property would revert to the Authority. On September 8,
2005, Naval Station Ingleside was recommended to the President for closure by the Base Realignment and Closure
Commission. In accordance with the Defense Base Closure and Realignment Act of 1990, the recommendation became
effective and binding in November, 2005. The Authority has exercised its reversionary rights to the subject property
under the Deed and the title to the subject property reverted back to the Port in April, 2010. The fair market value as
determined by appraisal of the land and improvements was reported as capital assets in the Authority’s statement of net
assets and as a capital contribution on the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets in the amount of
$101,671,427 for the year ended December 31, 2010.

The Authority, acting as the Naval Station Ingleside Main Base Implementing Local Redevelopment Authority (ILRA)
was conveyed the personal property remaining at NSI by Base Realignment and Closure Commission letter dated May
19, 2010. The personal property is restricted for use of support of the economic redevelopment of the former NSI. The
economic value of the personal property has been estimated and is reported as a restricted asset and a restriction of net
assets on the statement of net assets.

12. RESTATEMENTS

In prior years the Authority was incorrectly recording net pension cost as the amount contributed rather than the required
annual contribution and not recording the resulting net pension asset.

The beginning total net assets in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets for the Year Ended
December 31, 2010 has been restated to reflect the recognition of net pension asset in the amount of $318,003 not
recorded in prior years.

The Changes in Net Assets for the Year Ended December 31, 2010 increased by $283,601 to correct the pension cost.
The 2010 financial statements have been restated.



PORT OF CORPUS CHRISTI AUTHORITY

OF NUECES COUNTY, TEXAS

Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
Schedule of Funding Progress

W

PENSION PLAN:

Actuarial Valuation Date

Actuarial Value of Assets

Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL)

Funded Ratio

Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL)
Annual covered Payroll

UAAL as a Percentage of Covered Payroll

OPEB Obligation:

Actuarial Valuation Date

Actuarial Value of Assets

Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL)

Funded Ratio

Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL)
Annual covered Payroll

UAAL as a Percentage of Covered Payroll

2010 2009 2008
12/31/2010 12/31/2009 12/31/2008
$21,744,295 $20,143,863 $ 18,097,936
$26,372,629 $24,899,158 $23,421,983
82.5% 80.9% 77.3%
$ 4,628,334 $§ 4,755,295 § 5,324,047
$ 11,840,675 $11,397,962 $ 10,298,956
39.1% 41.7% 51.7%

2011 2010 2009
1/1/2011 1/1/2010 1/1/2009
$ - 8 - S -
$ 1,075,827 $ 1,430,581 $ 1,408,938
0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
$ 1,075,827 $ 1,430,581 $ 1,408,938
$ 10,531,666 $11,840,675 $ 11,397,962
10.2% 12.1% 12.4%
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PORT OF CORPUS CHRISTI AUTHORITY Schedule of Revenues and Expenses
OF NUECES COUNTY, TEXAS Actual and Budget (GAAP Basis)

B B e e e e ]

Year Ended December 31, 2011

Actual Budget Variance (%)
OPERATING REVENUES:
Wharfage $ 27,410,252 $ 26,341,972 4
Dockage 8,948,217 7,301,878 23
Security fees 6,319,747 5,839,385 8
Freight handling 2,387,583 2,173,000 10
Building and land rentals 6,411,552 4,281,248 50
Conference center services 1,814,456 1,845,723 2)
Warehouse handling charges 368,950 226,224 63
FTZ user fees 302,750 341,000 (1D
Other 4,735,454 2,158,098 119
Total Operating Revenues 58,698,961 50,508,528 16
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Maintenance and operations 22,760,814 21,350,797 (7
General and administrative 13,830,284 13,665,584 (H
Depreciation 13,381,562 11,656,761 (15)
Total Operating Expenses 49,972,660 46,673,142 N
Operating Income 8,726,301 3,835,386 128
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Interest revenue 467,494 433,342 8
Federal and other grant assistance 169,966 - 100
Donation of personal property 4,500 - 100
Gain on disposal of fixed assets 3,727,517 - 100
Interest expense and fiscal charges (392,699) (392,943) 0
Net Non-Operating Revenues 3,976,778 40,399 9744
Income Before Capital Grants and Contributions 12,703,079 3,875,785 228
CAPITAL GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS 5,402,273 6,975,713 (23)

Change in Net Assets $ 18,105,352 $ 10,851,498 67




PORT OF CORPUS CHRISTI AUTHORITY Schedules of Maintenance and
OF NUECES COUNTY, TEXAS Operations and General and
Administrative Expenses

For the Years Ended December 31,2011 and 2010

W

2011 2010
MAINTENANCE AND OPERATIONS:

Employee services $ 7,810,947 $ 8,374,106
Maintenance 5,136,098 3,538,398
Utilities 2,327,822 1,702,868
Telephone 101,960 35,286
Insurance 2,099,345 2,266,112
Professional services 1,415,731 691,191
Police expenses 14,233 66,434
Contracted services 1,897,144 1,876,695
Office and equipment rental 142,778 73,983
Operator and event expenses 1,538,092 1,415,417
Warehouse supplies 8,024 9,037
Safety/Environmental 83,442 69,075
General 185,198 129,909

Total Maintenance and Operations $ 22,760,814 $ 20,248,511

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE:

Employee services $ 7,224,377 $ 7,692,080
Maintenance 501,087 453,408
Utilities 194,864 172,703
Telephone 115,447 196,626
Insurance 92,492 124,620
Professional services 3,046,566 3,526,850
Police expenses 82 82
Contracted services 100,952 151,445
Office and equipment rental 65,104 59,809
Administrative 2,035,746 2,108,277
Trade and sales development 184,528 157,237
Media advertising 195,766 206,557
Production 24,222 25,678
Safety/Environmental 23,299 21,544
General 25,752 42,294

Total General and Adminisirative $ 13,830,284 $ 14,939,210




PORT OF CORPUS CHRISTI AUTHORITY Schedules of Long-Term
OF NUECES COUNTY, TEXAS Debt Amortization

REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2002-A

Years Ending Total

December 31, Principal Interest Requirements
2012 755,000 206,485 961,485
2013 790,000 171,000 961,000
2014 825,000 132,685 957,685
2015 865,000 91,435 956,435
2016 910,000 47,320 957,320
Total $ 4,145,000 $ 648,925 5 4,793,925

REVENUE BONDS. SERIES 2002-B

Years Ending Total

December 31, Principal Enterest Requirements
2012 565,000 145,365 710,365
2013 590,000 120,505 710,505
2014 620,000 93,660 713,660
2015 650,000 64,520 714,520
2016 680,000 33,320 713,320
Total $ 3,105,000 b 457,370 8 3,562,370

SUMMARY OF LONG-TERM DEBT

Years Ending Total

December 31, Principal Interest Requirements
2012 1,320,000 351,850 1,671,850
2013 1,380,000 291,505 1,671,505
2014 1,445,000 226,345 1,671,345
2015 1,515,000 155,955 1,670,955
2016 1,590,000 80,640 1,670,640

Total $ 7,250,000 $ 1,106,295 $ 8,356,295




PORT OF CORPUS CHRISTI AUTHORITY Schedules of Facilities Financing Bonds

OF NUECES COUNTY, TEXAS December 31, 2011
[[7 0 G ]
Interest Issue Series Original Balance
Description Rates Date Maturity Amount QOutstanding

Pollution Control Revenue Bonds:

Union Pacific Res., Series 1989 Variable 06/30/1989 2022 $ 40,000,000 $ 40,000,000
Valero Refining, Series 1997A * Variable 04/01/1997 2027 24,400,000 18,000,000
Valero Refining, Series 1997B * Variable 04/01/1997 2027 32,800,000 28,000,000
Valero Refining, Series 1997C * Variable 04/01/1997 2027 32,800,000 28,000,000
Hoechst Celanese, Series 2002A 6.450% 05/01/2002 2030 13,995,000 13,995,000
Hoechst Celanese, Series 2002B 6.700% 05/01/2002 2030 39,000,000 39,000,000

Environmental Facilities Revenue Bonds:

Citgo Petroleum, Series 2003 * 8.250% 05/01/2003 2031 39,200,000 19,300,000
Citgo Petroleum, Series 2006 * Variable 10/01/2006 2036 50,000,000 50,000,000
Citgo Petroleum, Series 2007 * Variable 05/01/2007 2037 45,000,000 45,000,000
Citgo Petroleum, Series 2008 * Variable 04/01/2008 2043 50,000,000 50,000,000
Solid Waste Disposal Revenue Bonds:

Flint Hills Res., Series 2002A Variable 10/01/2002 2029 125,000,000 125,000,000
Flint Hills Res., Series 2002B Variable 10/01/2002 2029 11,700,000 11,700,000
Flint Hills Res., Series 2003 Variable 04/01/2003 2028 19,500,000 19,500,000
Flint Hills Res., Series 2005 Variable 03/01/2005 2030 25,000,000 25,000,000
Flint Hills Res., Series 2006 Variable 04/01/2006 2030 42,000,000 42,000,000
Flint Hills Res., Series 2007 Variable 10/01/2007 2032 35,000,000 35,000,000

Total $ 625,395,000 $ 589,495,000

* - Issued by the Industrial Development Corporation (IDC)
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Statistical Section
(Unaudited)

This part of the Port of Corpus Christi’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note
disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the Authority’s overall financial
health.

Contents
Page

Financial Trends 39
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand
how the Authority’s financial performance and well-being have changed
over time.

Revenue Capacity 43
These schedules contain information to help the reader access the factors
affecting the Authority’s ability to generate its most significant revenue
sources.

Debt Capacity 49
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the
affordability of the Authority’s current level of outstanding debt and the
Authority’s ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information 51
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the
reader understand the environment with which the Authority’s financial
activities take place and to help make comparisons over time and with other
governments.

Operating Information 33
These schedules contain information about the Authority’s operations and
resources to help the reader understand how the Authority’s financial
information relates to the services the Authority provides and the activities
it performs.

Additional Information 59

These schedules contain information as part of the Authority’s effort to
meet continuing disclosure requirements related to outstanding bonds as
permitted by SEC Rule 15¢2-12.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived
from the Authority’s comprehensive annual financial reports and
business records for the relevant years. The Authority implemented
Statement 34 in 2003; schedules presenting government-wide
information include information beginning in that year.



PORTCORPUSCHRISTI

-38 -



9CC906'1LE S PLB008ESES €TTB069ETS 0I0S60HET S 089°6667TCS  £68°0STLITS 99L°069 70T S ¥S919€981 §  10S080°GLL§ 089°08LELLS S}ISSY JON [EI0]L

TE1°688°6¢ LISTTOV 0 8LYSLICT €80°15L°6T TEI'S00°81 TET'S60°0C PESTILIPT 680°790°8¢ LLUPPS'SE 860°€€8°S¢E papinsaluny

9TTYT6'l T99°LT6°1 TEYLYLL £89°9GL°1 €78°C61°T T0€'190°T L8LLYLT €9T°ErTT 870°8¥ET rr1°099°C POy

898°T60VEEC §  S690LYPIZE S CILV86'1ITS vFTL8STOTS STLOO8FOTS 6SEPLOSOL $ SPPISCBLL S TOC9S0'9ST $  96T881°LEL S 8P LRT'SCI §  199p paje[as Jo jou ‘sjasse [ejided ut pajsaau]
put B34 J¥ SJISSY JIN

9TT 906 1LE S PL8'008'CSE S €TTR069ET S 0I0°S60FET S 089666 7TTS  C680STLITS 99L°069F0T S SO 19981 §  105°080°SL1 § 089°08L°CLI $ 189 A JO puf ‘s1essy 19N [I0L
vL8°008°€5E €7T'806°9¢C 010°S60° 7€ 089°666¥7C €68°0€T°LIT 99L°06970T PS9°19€°981 10S°080°SL1 089°08L°CLI POV 9T TLL 183 A JO SutuwiSag ‘s19ssy 10N [BI0],
TSES01°81 159768911 €1T°¢I8C 0£€°560°6 L8L'SILL LTIOVSTI TI1°62E81 €SI 18T 11 17876671 981°LIS"I $1085y JON Ut s3ueyD)
CLTTOV'S 00L°0LY I €LS060°C 9YL0IST 0LLEE' Y ¥8S°19T°CI 81TTOLLL TE1'ESH 0L LTS'8E9°1 960°€TI’l suonnquiuo)) Eide)
6L0°C0LTI 1$6°12T°S 0v9°CCL 7851859 LIOSEL'E CPS8LT 768°9¢€S 120828 (90L°8¢¢) 060°'76€ SUOHNGLIUOY) 210J3¢ (SSO])IML0OU]
65£°69€°0¢ €T8TTYLY SE6CIE9Y ¥01°€89°Sh YILVTO'CY S9S°LTOLE 981°81¥'ce SL6T06°6T 81V 1v1'8C 91LLIE9T sosuadxy [e10],
- £r9°g - £88°80¢ €67°01 S6€°SI - - 95806 - sjasse [eyrdeo Jo [esodsip uo sso7]
- - - 8FOV8T - - - - - - syuardioaiqus o syuawihed [BOSL]
- SrL01 SEL0OT S19°8T 8T8°LE 8Sy6¥ 019°¢9 81718 798101 T6E°8L §1500 20UBNSSL pUOq JO UOHEZIIOWY
669°76€ 209°051 0€0'0S r s S6¥° 079 1197689 €TETIL 7S8°6¢EL 66€°18L $85°959 sagaeyd oSy pue asuadxa jsalemu]
099°CL6'6Y SERTSE LY 0L1°88LSY 9L 166V 7Y 8v1°95¢ Ty [01°€LT9¢E ST TY9TE S0L180°6C 10EPIV'LT 6£L°785°ST sasuadxs Junuiado feio],
7957 18E°¢CI KL S¥9°090°01 6£9°879°6 V9 THY's LYYLTIL SSoTrI'9 959°¢IS°S SITLIVS TLEPTS uoneaxday
¥8T0€8°CI 0165671 CVL'6T0°ST S9G°LO0CT 6L1°1TSTL 68S°09L°01 9P0°6£1°01 LES0E9°6 1£9°7LS'6 PLIC88'S SANRLSIUIPE pUe [BISUSL)
P18°09L°CC 11$°8¥T0C T8L°L69°0T L6 TY8°IT 6TETO6EIT $90°¢8€ 81 TSI 19€91 TIL'LEGEL SSSHLYTI C61CIV 11 suonelado pue aouBUUIRIA
:sasuadxa SunerndQ
sosuadxy
818909 YLL'YYO'ES SLSSEOLY 889°L9C°CS 18L°6S1 9% 801°90€°L¢E 080°656°¢€ 966 0£L°0¢ CTILT01°8C 908°[1L°9T SONUAY [B10 ]
LISTLTLE - 99T°L - - - 897°09 SE6'THT 1 - v1T9¢T s1osse [eydes jo (esodsip uo uren
00S'v $T8°5TT - - - - - - - - Auadoid jeuosiad jo uoneuog
996°691 908°09 0LS'LT $H0' V8T - - P16°8L - ‘ - - J0UE)SISSE JURID 10 PUE [BIOP3,]
voy L9V 16T°8LY 6¥8°18S LYV TE6 V0Tl L69°69T°1 900'%80°1 POLOIIT 66871 €65 PIEL 9NUDASI JSa13U]
196°869°8¢ TS8°6LTTS 068°STH oY €61°150°1S LSV 616 VY 1117°9€0°9€ T68°1ELTE L6TILE8T C18°6L8°9C 666091°5T sonusaal 3utjesado [ej0 ],
PSY'SELY 881°97C°T 07Z'68S°1 801°8€S" Y 769°L88°1 8V9SH8’l 91C e8Pl 6TE6Er’| 865°08€C 9LI'TOET LYo
- - - - - - - - 865°SY 85 81 ssardwon
0SL°70¢€ 000°LEE 000°9Z¢ 00S¥8T 000°567 000°€hT ceeiece 999°19T 0SL 9T S11°L8T $39] s Z 14
0S6'89¢ £60°97F 891°965 90€°L9E°1 YL TIT I POV 81 SII°LEL'] 6SL918 9ECLET'T 8LI'VS6 $981eYo Sul[puRy 9SNOYIIB A
9S8l $88°6L9°1 LOV'L0OT 0€9°ISH'l P6S L6S"L 665°S61°1 007°95S°1 9TL'€99°1 T6S Pl PE6'LIEC’T S3OIAISS 12]U3D 3DURIJUOT)
[4SH11 2] SIS LIVY 090°vT6°E 8SHQICY TrESrSy TLSLEOY S8I1°50LE Iv1°601'c 79L°19¢°¢ 796°68¢°¢C S[ejual pue| pue Juippmg
€8S°L8ET L99°91€T 129°8T¥°T CTY'SLLT 8L1°991°C [15°590°C 619°15€T 98+ 9L6'1 6T1°C6¥'1 S6L0IF'T Suipuey Jysra1
LYL'61E9 88C0LIL9 S8V TIvE SYLYLYC S69°15€°T LET8SIT wo'l1Tl'e 618698 - - $99) A1noag
L1T'8Y6'8 9TE'8EL’S 6ST6LEL LOI'SLOL £€C°659°¢ CTLYSEE T06°€S1Y 071°858°¢ 088°81C°¢ L99EEL'T sdespo(
CSTOIY'LT § L8S°L9S9T § 0L99T8WT § €T8'6SC9T $ SES'61TLT § LILTISS6l § LLIT88C'ST § 1LT9LO'WL § 89I°SES'Sl § TE9veESTI § aBeprey
:sonuoaal SunjeiadQ
SINUIAIY
1102 0107 600 8007 L00T 900¢C S007 y00T €007 7007
S183 4 U9 ], Jse] SYXAL ‘ALNNOD SADANN A0
§J3SSY JON Ul sa3ury)) pue s)assy PN ALROHLNY ILSIHHD SQd¥0D AQ Ld0d

(paypneun) | A14V.L



LLV69EY §  TTOVYIL §  €89°609 §  S6v9ITT §  bTEOSTL §  L6969TL §  BSICTTL §  669°6S€T §  668°TTTL §  LOSOSST $

£86'106°¢ 1€9°98C 9¢8°%C 80 18C - 781°6¢!1 CE6THTL ¥17°9€T By
ver'L9y  §  16T8LY §  6v8¥8S  $  LbPTE6 § PTEOETT § L69°69TT § 900°v80°L §  FOL'GII'T §  668°TTLT § €6SFIETT $ 1sa103U] o
Seliile) <

:53NUdAY Junessdy-uop

19686985 §  TE86LTTSE  068°STHOFS  €6LICOTISS  LSV'6T6YP S  TIV9£0°9ES  TORIELTES  LO6T'ILESTS  €186L8°9T8  666°091°ST§

PSYCEL'Y 88%°97T°T 07T'S8S°1 801°8¢S™y 69°L88°1 8¥9°C¥8°| 91€'¢8¥'l 6TE6ER 1 865°08¢€°C LT T0E T L_YIO
- - - - - - - - 865°CH 8£6°¢81 ssaxdwo)
0SL°T0¢ 000°LEE 000°9z¢ 005¥8T 000°56¢ 000°€¥T €EE°EET 999°19T 0SLY9T C1I°L8T S99) Josn Z [
056°89¢ £60°9CY 891°96S 90€°L9¢€"1 9FIT1T ] YOV ¥8¥°l SI1°LEL’T 6£L°918 9EELET'T 8LIVS6 sad.reyd Jurpuey ASnoYaIe M
9IS PI8T1 $88°6L9°1 LOY*LOOT 0€9°1SH°1 P65 L6S T 665°S6¥°1 00T'95¢S 1 9TL'€99°1 TS VPl PE€6°L9E'] SIDIAIDS J3JUDD IDUDIJUO)
TSSHI¥9 SIS LTV 090°vT6°€ 8SP'81¢Y THESYS Y TLSLEO'Y ¢81°c0L’c 171°60%°¢ T9L°19¢€°¢ 796°68¢°¢ s[eual pue| pue 3urpjing
£86°18€°C L9991€T 129°8T1°C €TV'8LIT 811°991°C 11€°¢90°T 619°16€T 987°9L6°1 6T1°T6¥°1 S6L0IFT Sur[puey ySI[
LYL61E9 88T0LI9 S8YTIvE 8YLPLY'C S69°16¢€°T LETRSIT WO'1Z1T 618°698 - - $99J AILIN0OG
L1T'8V6°8 97€'8€1°8 6ST61E°L L61°8LOL £€E°¢69°E €TLYSEC 206°€STY 071°868°¢ 088°817°¢ LI9EELT agexo0(
TSTOIVP'LTS  L8STLYS9T$  0L9'9T8VYTS  €T8°6SE9T§ SES6ITLTS  LIL'ISE6I S LL1°88ECI § 1LT9L0VI § 891°¢ec°cl § TE9'PESTL $ CELAEEII
:5onuaAdy suneisdQ
1107 0107 600¢ 8007 L0O0T 9007 007 007 £007 2007
SABDA U3, IS8] SVXHAL ‘ALNAOD SAJAAN A0
99an0g £q SINUIANY ALIMOHLAY LLSIITHD SNdY0D 40 LI0d

(panipneun) 7 AT14V.L



669°T6¢  § 886°697  § SOLVTCS  § 886°€81L°L § 919'899 § rorvrsL  § €E6'SLL  § 0LT°1Z8  § LIT'LLE6  § LLEVEL  §

98¢€'61 S€L°0T 1€6°T6S £62°01 S6€°¢l - 96806 BYIO

669°T6€  $ [ACNUS 2 0£0°0S  § LSO16S  § €2€°859  § 690°6€L  § €E6'SLL  $ 0LT1T8  $ 197988 § LLE'VEL  § 1salqug
eliile)
:sasuddxq Suneaad(-uoy]

79S°18E°ELS PIICOLTIS S¥9°090°01% 6£9°8¥9°6 § 0v9THr'S $ LYYLTEL § €sOTr19 § 9S9°¢ISC § SLILIYS § TLEVSTS § uoperoaidag
¥8T°0E8ELS 01T'6£6'71$ €VL'6T0CIS S9S°L00'ELS 6LIITSTIS 685°09L°019 9v0°6E1°01$ LEE0E9°6 § 1€9°CLS°6 § vL1°€88°8 §
TSLST r6T Ty S81°se 61£°001 689°0¢ (8cz'col) 19L%81 $0£°001 vL0°9CT LTLEpl [BloU25)
66T°€T rrsiIe 189°C¢ 90T°8¢ 7669 L¥0°9€ 6€¥°0T 766°0C 688°61 8€9°¢1 [elUaWILON AU/ 10T
TTTYT 8L9°ST 61€°8Yy L16°LT €LLOE 198°9¢ 17494 09¥°ST 8€CLS 816°SS uononpoid
99L°¢61 LSS 90T STH 801 79T°601 STL'LSY LSSEL LTS'16 LS6°T01 0€5°88 95TYT1 SuIsiaAPE BIPOI
8TS 18I LET'LS] LTV 0T 9r6'8Y1 191°9%1 7S0°€Tl 0S¥°LO1 96T cYl v8¥°STL 67671 uouwido[aAdp Sofes puE SPEL],
IrLCE0T LLT'801°C TT8T6ET 81€°€L8L 856°CT6°1 1€0°LY9°1 860°€8t°1 806'866°1 8ELEES L 611°6LT1 dANBOSIUIPY
v01°S9 608°65 90t 0Y ¥9T°81 €L1'0l 758°9 1Shy Tro'e 0LT°8 SvTT feruar ueuidinbs pue 201450
7€6°001 SPPIST €ITY9 797°88 097°861 PSLPEL 681°FS 915°09 £7£°89 9TT¥6 SADIAISS POIIRNUOT
8 [} VLI (483 91¢C 125 el 6Ch°1 - - sasuadxa 201j0d
995°9%0°¢ 058°9Z¢°¢ 056°TLEE £78'614°T 910°06T°T 970'%98°1 €LO'ELLL 8LLTVYL 005 18L°1 9T9'P6L’L SOOIAISS [BUOISSDJOL]
T6¥°T6 029+l 8€9°96 1SV 18 v1€801 0L9°111 rs86l1 8LT°SY 9t L01 615°80¢ sdueInsu|
LYY'SLL 979961 L9T°60T 856°1¢€C 8¥YT'E1T 0T5°50T 6£6'60C 798°801 L8TE0I1 69°86 suoydaja],
98161 €0LTLY STV €98°961 18¥°7TT 985°81C ¥98°791 SEIsel 8PP IEL S6£°811 semnn
L8O'10S 80T ESy 880°CEY 019°0T¢ 995°16¢ 09LYTE 8<°6TT ThEPLT 61¥°CLT T65°L6T SouBUANUIBIA
LLEVYTTL $ 080°T69°L $ €06°'LE8L $§ 0£0°6YEL $ L09°808°9 § SSH0S1°9 § 88E°11LS § 860°L9€°S § SS9'8r0°S § SE0'ELSY § seotates eakofdiuy '

DANRISIUIWPY pUv [RIOUSD)  F

718°09L°TTS 11S°8¥2°0T$ T8L'L6G0TS T16°Th8°1ZS 6TETOEITS S90°S3E'SIS TSI 19€91§ TILLEGELS SSSrLYTLS £61°GIP LIS

861°¢81 606°6T1 €11°961 S01°e6 00$°0TT 061°CLI SYLYL 099°6TT 88Y°8LL 09¥°€$C [eloURD)
ThY'Es SLO6Y 9YT1L LY6°06 £69°79 0L6°0S 605°¢S 081°¢cy £6C°91 $86°6€ [ejuowuoAUz/KRJeS
¥20°8 LEO'6 00LpY 8TP'89 T67'8€ 96’19 78€°9¢1 18716 €789 0LL'S8 satjddns asnoyarem
T60°8€S°1 LIFSIFL 65S0°05S°1 T00°08T°1 §T0°€TSl PEETIEL 8TV LYTL SPE8EY'L 908°01€°1 898°¢CTl sasuadxa juaas pue t0je1d()
8LLTYI £86°¢L LT9'L6 ¥00°16 1694T1 LTS'6T1 $99°8L 176°SC 80611 01,901 [epuas Juswdinba pue 25130
Pr1°L68°] $699L8°1 €9T9TY°1 [Aaadt il $68°991°C €TL011°T 0r8°SSIT 058°€8t’l 8C1°C8Y°1 6V0°L6S°1 SIJIAIDS PRIOBIUOT)
EETPI PEY°99 81T°¢¢ 901°vL (A2 4} 9LT'ES 88L°9€ TSTY9 - - sasuadxa 201104
LELSIP'L 161°169 TrL006 SLEYTY €LOYYE $80°00% 681°vPS T06'viY 8C1°8CT 81¥°20T SI0IAIRS [BUOISSOJOL]
SrE660°T T1'99tc 816 1¥8°1 1€€7T06°1 £86°L10C 98T°9CL1 €8 P9T 1 98¥°LTE L 861°LTY'l TSE9LT ] SouBINSU]
096°101 987°¢€ 9€¥°9T 166°6C 669°C¢ 91L°€T r69°61 89¥°0T 85€TT SPOYE auoydaya g,
TTYLTET 898°T0L’L LOE1E9°L YOE'LSEL 650°€8€°1 110°66€°1 TSP°S60°1 TECH96 600°988 [6£769 sanin
860°9€1°S 86£°8€S°¢C €I1°L86Y YLLOVES S09°€81'9 899°CLLY 96L°LIEE SS9°1¥9°C $78°989°C YOI 0L6'] SouBUAUIBIA
LY6'OIS8L $ 9017LES § 8€0°998°L § EPPesT8 § TITS69 § €€€°89L9 § 1v2°967°9 § 09€°90T°S § [eSvrly § 190°626°¢C $ sa01A105 92K 0] duz

:uonesad() pue aduRUUIRIA
ssasuadxyy SuneasdQ

1107 0102 6007 8007 L0O0T 9007 007 00T £007 2007
SABI X U] ISer] SVXAL ‘ALNNOD SADANN A0
adAj, Aq sasuadxy ALTHOHLOV LISRIHD SONd4d00 40 1Ld0d

(poypneun) € AT4V.L



%61°¢ %9¢°1 %LTO %08°C
%rS9 %VS'v %907 %L1'9
%PETo %lELY %96'9L %LT 89
%99°LE %69°C¢ %P0 €T %EL1E
%81°L %lE¢ %56V %ly'L

%l1T1
%8Y'Y

%8Y°SL
%CS VT
%SE9

%110
%¥6'C

%88°08
%l ol
%C6'¢

%CC0
%IL'T

%9608
%¥r0°6l
%86'¢

%6£°0
%66'C

%L0°E8
%E6°91
%V €

5521301 Ul UOHONISUOY) SOPN[OXT - s

%L10" %0T°0
%8¢°CT %68'C
%C0°C8 %L9°08
%86°L1 %Eeol
%LEE %EL'E

9PL9TL'86ES  SI19°S8LTSE §

L6T°E9°697§  6I8'ILTCITS  6EP'SPI8ST S

16T°891°TSTS 6TV SKOTHT §

£90°687°CIT$

9S9°CII'L6L S EPSTI6E961 §

878°620°80€ §  L8CPSIOIES  SLOPIEQITS €THISSBITS 886 98P ELI §

SPLL66'SLLS  $86°CTLOSTS  991°866'6€1 §

601°86T°CVL §  9¥P906°SH1 §

6LO°COLTL $ I1S6°1TTS § 0p9TTL § v8SH8S9  §  LIOSELE €hS'8LT § $68°9¢S 120°878 (90L°8€€)  $§ 060v6€  §
(ZoS 18€°€1)  (FLL's91°C)  (S#9°090°01)  (6£9°8¥9°6) Oy crt's) Ly LTI'L) ($50°Tr1°9) (969°¢16°6) (S11°L17°9) (TLEP8TS)
1¥9°¥80°9C $90°L8E"LI €8T€8L°01 €TTECTOL LSO LLSL1 066°S0V°L 66°8L9°9 LLYIHE9 607°8L0°S 294°8L9°C
(669°76¢€) (886°69%) (s9L7vCS) (886°¢81°1) (919°899) oy HsL) (£€6°SLL) LT 1T8) (L11°LL6) (LL6'VEL)
LLY'69E' Y TLEYIL $89°609 S6v°91T1 YTE0ET1 L69°69T°1 881°€TT1 669°65€°T 668°TTT1 L0O80SS°1
£98°L01°TT [€1°260°LI $9€°869°01 91L°002°91 6v6°S10°11 LSL068°9 P69 1€T°9 8YTCO8'Y LT9TESY T€9°798'Y
(860°165°9¢)  (17L°L81°SS)  (sgsizLse)  (LLv'osspe)  (8osclece)  (1sosvi'60)  (861°00697)  (6v0°89S°€D)  (981°Lv0°TT)  (L9E°86T°00)
196°869°8S $ TSS6LTTS $ 068°STHor § €61°1S0°IS §  LSY6T6VY $  IIV9090€ § T681ELTE § LO6TILEST § €186L8°9T § 666°091°6T §
1107 0107 6007 8002 L0O0T 9007 $007 00T €002 2001

uone1oarda(g sopnoxy - »

(V/a9.IND wga 10U
(VI VLN WV 10

8.A03B31pUf [OY WO

(NO/a0) oney Sunessd
(JO/ION) uiBiepy SunerdQ
(VON/ION) [0 SuneiadQ

:s1038d1puj SugesddQ

(v.L) swessy [e10],
s+ (VOND s108sV [ende) 1aN

(N w8, (S507T) Swioou] 1oN
uoneaidag

(WVuIN) V., SWOdU] N
sasuadxy Jugeiod(-uoN

sonuaAdy uielado-uoN

(JON) swoouy unesed() 19N
» (40) sesuadxyq Jupesad
(MO) senuaady] Sunered

SIBIX UWIJ, IS8
SA0}EIPU] IDUBWAOPIdJ [BIDUBULY

SVXAL ‘ALNNOD SIJDENN 40
ALMOHLAV LLSIHHD S(1dd00 40 LA0d

(poyipneun) v+ AT9GV.L



LIT0I1E°08 L6T V6178 8r9°615°9L 8E€V°658°68 769°61£°68 ¥£8°786°98 616°58L°98 £08°¢6£98 YTIIE1°68 £76'856°08 feao L

Or1°618¥9 198°006°89 TTSSIT Y9 ¥19°090°0L 6£9°€68' VL 6¥09L1°CL TSETESEL [SOVITYL €91°220vL vS¥006°69 wnojoaed
ereiees 112°90¢ 001°1€1 LO0‘10E 9€0°¢1¢S CeE8IT €0V°8I¢ 906°L0Y SEI'EYT 8£6°69 ying pinby
89€°769°8 9p¥°998°9 8SOEPP9 PE168°L PSSIVT'8 0E1°00L°L ¥S0°96€°8 YOV 68TL €16°€£8°9 9SY TOYL ying A1
80LEVL’] EVT891°1 8T0°01¥°l 810°0€9°1 PLY8Y8’I £66°695°1 6TEC6L°] 9ELTYIT 980400°C 9TY'S09°1 [eoluIay)
1Z8VITy LLTELLY LYE1S6°E LOSETHS 98€°LLE'S 019°1€0°C 678°860°C 060°9¢8°1 6L5°999°] 10€°SH8°1 uel
1£9°90¢ 6ST°6EE €66°L1¢€ 065°7S¢ 0T P L69°9¢T 786 by 910°€0S T 19¢€ 8PL6EL Ang eaded
s10} 24048 - $1830 ], A} poUwILIo])
LIT0I€08 L6TY61°T8 8¥9°615°9L 8EV°658°C8 769°61€°68 $€8°786°98 6766898 £08°€6£°98 PTITIE1°C8 £26'856°08 [e30 4,
86£°68 Y6T°S¢E ¥98°L 698°C¢ §283! £96°CE 809°9¢ 808°L9 7569 8SE01 [810 ]
L¥9°8¥ 162°C1 PEL] - (oL LOL'T 069°8¢ $LS 19 068°9 8S€01 jng L1g
9TL1€ €0S°Tl - 0r0'p1 6T€01 9pL*S - - - - uieln
€T0°6 005°01 0€1°9 67881 615V 016°9T 816°L1 VET9O 9 - Ang eaid
jurod uodury
€66°01¢°¢ 0S0°C68°L TPT6E8°L C86°TSL L 67€°600°8 £27°956°9 PSETPEL LOSLOOL 999°899°9 61S 7SI 18301
678°0€€°S 6TV SIL L 91¥°099°L 8E8'CLYL C16°1VL L 98¢°606°9 SSPSII'L 1€1°69L°9 S66°1€5°9 6ST°190°9 wng{oa
S19°% TIO°L - - LTy - - (90s°¢) 90¢°¢ - Fng &g
1667611 609°691 978°8L1 LYI'LLT VILYTT LEYOY 668°92C 788°11T co1°eel 09T°¢6 Ang Neald
apisaj3uj
- - - 4 9 9 8¢ 918°1 6L9°LI T68°L 1830,
- - - - - - (433 - £es 09L°C unajoaed
- - - Z 9 9 9 9181 OVI°Ll 4% XY Ang deaig
pug[s] 10qae}
9SEHPS L 91€£€9Z°9 #0$°2€8°S 7ES091°L LYEE09°L LOSYTT'L 08€°99¢°L 689°918°0 1€L°16L°9 89EVLYO [810],
0SL 1Y YOb°TT 99L°81 L09°9T §T6'9¢ 0€0°¥%T [80°CT 81S°I¢€ 98¢£°€T 798°9C wnajoaa
SLT'LI8S ¥11°608'% T69°L9YY L99°TLS'S LSTO8L'S CEL069°¢C P8¥°T18°C 0€L°689V T0S°19LY 76068V sing A1g
[€£€°689°] 6TV OEY'1 90°99¢°| 86T 196°1 €91°96L°1 r1018°] SI88TLI I¥F°C60°C £78°996°1 $96°9¢S L [Bo1wayD
- 69¢€°1 - - - - - - - - g eald
vluing) ey
89¥°S91°L9 LE9°€00°89 8£0°0Z8°29 0S0°€16°0L 678°€69°€L CE1'89LTL 69T°0T8°1L £86°66¥°CL 960°989°1L 98L°11£°89 [e10]
LIS V¥ 68 870°€91°19 0¥€°985°9¢ 691°855°79 108%TI°LY €EVTHT89 P8Y 16£°99 2007 1LY 16T°99%°L9 €L5°608°€9 wnajonad
AR A A 112°90S 001°1€1 LOO'10E 9€0°€1S SeE'8Pe £0¥°81¢ 906°L0Y SEI'EvT 8£S°CH s[ng pmbiy
1€8°128°C 620°8€0°C TETYLE L CLIBIET 78T0TY'C 880°800°C 088'¥¥<°T 909°1¥$°T €10°790°C LS1'10S°T jing A1g
LLE'8S PI8°LE 786°CY 09.°89 60L°TS 168°6S v1$°99 SOT'LY YTLE 198°8¥ [edruRy
C60°E8IY YLL001Y LYE1S6'E LT860V°C LSO'L9E'E $98°670°C 678°860°C 060°9€8°1 6L5999°1 10€°6H8°1 uteln
$S0°TTl I8L°LST LEO'EET T19°9¢T ¥96°€1T 122832 6S1°00T $80°€ST €L8°01C 9GE° ¥ Ang Neg]

J0qJBY JouU]
5101 10YS - UOISIAL(J 310d A9 Aypowwo))

1107 0102 60027 8007 L00T 9007 S007 007 £00¢7 2007
SIBI{ U, JSE7] SVXIL ‘ALNAOD SHDANN A0
Aypowmio)) Ag 3249WWO)) 340 ALROHLAV ILSIIHD SNdI0D 40 LI0d

(paytpneun) ¢ AIAV.L



Aing Nvugm 1Ly Q g fam wang Ang pmbrig wnjonRdm

I10T 0107 600T 800¢C L00T 900¢ $00T 00T €007 00T

000°000°01

000°000°02

000°000°0€

000°000°0

000°000°08

SuoJ, J10ys

000°000°09

000°000°0L

000°000°08

000°000°06

000°000°001

SIBO A UA T JSEr] SVXAL ‘AINNOD SADHAN A0
LIpommio)) Ag 3219UUWO)) 110 ] ALTHOHLAV LLSTHHD SOd440D A0 Ld0d

(ponunuo) - pajipneun)) ¢ I4V.L

_44 -



€IS 69L°C IS1° 20’9 vrL’9 €699 SECL LETL 99L%9 L9
8107 19y 6€8°€ 1Ly 019°Y w9y 867 9LT°S L8LY S0EY
$96 266 €L6 170°1 LSO'L 6101 0001 9501 €L0° 0r6
o¢y 91p 6€€ 0€L LLO'L a6 LEO'L $06 906 9701
3 3 z 8 9 C vIl 99 v €
T £ 7 8 9 ¢ pI 99 v €
91 45 L61 91 0Ll ] vel 01z Tl orl
8r L9 99 or v 5 [ [ 95 T
s L01 601 86 L6 6 88 98 08 78
T 8¢ (44 ol 8z S ul €l 9 €l
I - - LT 7€9 99¢ 019 8¢ Sps (59
I - - - - - - - B €

- - - LTt z€9 99¢ 019 8¢ 0vs 829
LOE 91€ s9z €re 81y £ly 196 6vs szs T6¢
68 €l 08 w01 991 S 01€ 18C LST 191
101 69 $8 501 sl oLl b0l L9 49! 4t
Ll ! 001 L01 L1 4 Lyl 101 911 611
8667 817°¢ L89°F 80€°S 81S°C 06°S 968°C 1€8°C 055° 9.0°
8L8°C 891Y 169° ury €er orry T8y 818 9Py 990
68L 918 6LL 618 sz8 L18 808 €08 178 yhL
12 pez LIT LLE 00€ €€t 892 01z pre 992

110z 0107 6007 8007 £002 9007 500z 700z €007 2002

$jassaq o
$a340g
sivue ]
o31e)) A
sdiyg
B30,
S1assaq piog
soding
Ju10 J UOULY
$]2589,4 VIO ]
sading
SIOMUB ]
odre) A1(q
sdujg
10QaRE] IpIsa|u]
s]assa | D10 ]
sading
odm) A1
sdiys
pug|sj Joqary
$jassaq p3og
sa3ung
SIMUB ],
03D A1
sdiyg
Joqaey vjuing) ey
sjassa 4 o g
sa8vg
SIMuR]
o81e]) Ai(g
sdiifs
16qae]] Jauu]

SIBI X U], ISe]
dJRAL, [9SSIA

SVXAL ‘ALNNOD SADANN A0

ALT-MOHLAYV LLSTHHD SAdd0D 40 LJOd

(poyipneun) 9 AIIV.L

- 45 .



sdiyg o3ae) Laqg samue g sadiegm A;

110t 0107 600¢ 8007 L00T 9007 S00T y00T €007 00T

j__| 000°1

- L 000°C

— — 000°C

000y

S[ISSIA

e 000°s

— e e = : _ . 0009

000°L

000°8

000°6

S1B9 X U9, IS SVXAL ‘ALNNOD SADANN A0
SYJe.L], [ISSIA ALRMOHLAYV LLSTHHD SN430D 40 LJd0d

(panunuo) - payipneun) 9 A14V.L

- 46 -



QInseawt 10 JYFIom - A/AA ‘SUO} PaIs)sIFal ss0If - [0 1Suo} paa)sifal jou - [N Suoy jydiom peap - LA S[o4Ieq - Tyg Suo) 1oys - [/S

ey paysignd s A110ymy oyl WO pauleIqo aq AR SJEI [[B “SITIN0S INUIAI S,AILIOWINY 211 Jo Jueoyiudis 1sow ay) jJuesaldal onpayas sy uo papodal sajes ey
0107 W papudwuafduar 99) joxed suLIBW B PUR $33) JBOQD1L 2pNJOUL $39,] A19jeS Jogle] ¢
s3ut(jiq a8exo0p pue afeireyM UO Pale[no[ED ST 23] af1eoIns ALNses |

%S'L %001 %001 %0°C1 %S 11 %0711 %S 01 %0°01 - - , 394 2B1eYdung Aandag
000£2$ 00°0£7$ 00'5€$ 00°SE$ 00°0€$ 00°0¢$ 000¢$ 000€$ 00°0€$ 00°0£$ a3reg saBieg
00°7£0°C$ 007€0°T$ 00°5LT$ 00'SLT$ 00°0¥T$ 00°0¥Z$ 00°0¥C$ 000¥T$ 00°0¥C$ 000778 diyg sduys
2931 £32jus J0quBY
pmbry/A 9sg  pmbryligeeg  pmbryyAiq ess  pmbryAiqg 99s 00'00L$ 00°00L$ 00°00L$ 00°00L$ 00°00L$ 00°00L% adeg +09¢
v9°9T1$ 00°ST1$ 00'56$ 00°06% 00°0L$ 00°0L8 00°'0L$ 00°0L$ 00°0L$ 00°0L$ a81eg 1991 09£-0
soflreq
pmbrrykiqg eog  pmbryAigees  pmbrylig eeg  pmbryAig eeg $T00% $T0°0% $T0°0$ $20°0$ ST00$ $T0°0$ Lma S[ossap
Ang pmbyy
ros 1708 15°0$ 6708 £10% £1°0$ £1°0% €1°0$ €1°0$ €108 LD [eutiLa | yng
v9'921$ 00'sTL$ 1811 00°56% 1811 00°06$ LN 60°0$ LN 60°0% 1IN 60°0$ LAN 60°0$ LAN 60°0$ 1IN 60°0$ Kemaarep puejuy - sadieg
99°Z1$ 0STI$ §S°TIS L1'8$/80°C1$ 266 76'6% 76'6% £9°8$ £9°8% £9°8$ 1994 . +006
09°01$ 9P01$ 0S01$ £8°9$/01°01$ 678% 62'8$ 628% 1T 1zL$ 17T'L$ 199, 6687008
08'8$ 69°8$ 7L8% L9°5$/6£°8$ 68°9% 68'9% 689 66'S$ 66°6$ 66°S$ 1994 66L-00L
£8°9% L 9% LL9$ LY P$/1579$ £r'ss £r'c$ EP'S$ Lvs Lvs s 1954 669-009
L6'SS 68°S$ 16's$ $8'€$/69°5$ L9P$ LYV L9V$ 90't'$ 90'+$ 90'v$ 109, 665005
rr s 3EHS or'v$ 88°T$/ET TS 05°¢$ 05°€$ 05°'¢$ z0°¢$ 00¢$ 20 1994 661-00%
yie$ ores 1e$ 01°28/66'C$ S5 §S°T$ 94 7 TS TS 1994 66£-00T
6£T$ 9€T$ LETS 79'1$/8C°T$ L6'1S$ L6'1S L6'1$ 061§ 06'1$ 06'1% 1094 661-0
_u_:_w_}—\tﬁ— m_ommO\/

od1er) [eIduUdD)
$3)eY 93Byd0(

00LS €S 0025°¢§ 00£s°€S 0007'¢$ 000t'€$ 000¥°¢$ 000y'€S 000¥°€$ 000¥'€$ 000t'€$ LS amssaid ‘sjossap
0086'7$ 00T6'7$ 00¥6'v$ 00SL'v$ 000¥'€$ 000t'€$ 0007°€$ 0007°€$ 000¥'¢$ 000¥'¢$ LS SOPIYLA
00LT'1$ 00sT'1$ 00ST'1$ 000T'1$ 000T'1$ 000T°1$ 000T'1$ 000T' 1S 000T'($ 000T'1$ L/S 10 9[qeI0FaA
0050°1$ 000603 0029°0% 0009°0$ 000908 0009°0% 0009'0§ 000908 0009°0% 0009°0% LS auoysaLU| “ay1fed ‘sajedardse ‘pues
001¢'1$ 006718 000€°1$ 000L0% 000S0% 0005 0% 0005708 000¥'0$ 000t'0% 000t'0% 1/s 510npOld 0] pue oy
001€'t$ 006T°18 000€°1$ 000€°1$ 000€'1$ 000€°1$ 000¢°1$ 0000°0% 0000°0% 00000% LS 081e]) paleIaTLLaYy
0088°¢$ 00v8°C$ 00S8'C$ 00sL°C$ 0006°1$ 0006'L$ 0000°0% 0000°0% 0000°0% 0000°0$ LS juawidimby jue[d/uoneIoULn) SoMO]
00$0°5$ 0086°t$ 0000°s$ 0000°S$ 0000°S$ 0000°S$ 0000°¢% 0000°S$ 0000't$ 0000'$ Hoslod s1oguasseq
00¢$°1$ 001S°1§ 002s°1$ 000L°0% 0005708 000$°0$ 0005°0% 000¥°0% 000t'0% 000t°0$ L/S pajeapAYap N[N
00€t'S$ 009¢°S§ 008¢'s$ 000€°C$ 000€°C$ 000€°C$ 000€'C$ 000€'1$ 000€°1$ 000€°T$ LS ogd1e) KBl
006873 0058°C$ 009828 00SL'C$ 0000°C$ 000028 0000°C$ 0000'C$ 0000°C$ 0000°C$ 1S Fuiaowt yures ‘Furpesd ‘Koujyoepy
006878 00$8°C$ 0098'¢$ 00578 009L°1$ 00918 009L°1$ 009L°1$ 009L°1$ 0000°0% LS [eIN}NOLISE “AIDUIOBIA
0088°1$ 0098°1% 00L8'1% 0008'1§ 000T'1$ 000T'1$ 000T'1$ 000T'1$ 000T'1$ 000T'1$ s SOOIV [29]S puB uoI|
0092°0% 009T°0% 009T°0% 00ST'0$ 00L1°0% 00L1°0% 00L1°0% 00L1°0% 00L1'0% 00L1°0% /s (3inq) s10npol ulelD pue uleid
001e'1$ 006T°1$ 000¢'1$ 000L°0% 0005 0% 0005°0% 0005°0% 000¥°0% 000t 0% 000¥'0% LS SIONpold uletn pue ureisy
001503 000$°0$ 00050% 008¥°0$ 008¥°0% 008%°08 0087°0% 0051°0% 0051°0% 00s1°0$ oredg uonon
00850% 00LS0% 00L5°0% 00$$°0$ 0005°0% 000S0% 0005°0$ 000¥°0% 0001 0% 000¥°0$ LS SBI( 79 S{UDT ‘sueag]
6£80°0% 8780°0% 1€80°0$ 0080°0% 0080°0% 0090°0% 0090°0% 00v0°0$ 00v0°0$ 00¥0°0% g Aing piabig
0050'1$ 0006°0$ 007908 0009°0$ 0009°0$ 0009°0% 0009°0% 0009°0% 0009°0$ 0009°0$ 1/S ying £1Qg
0068°C$ 00$8°C$ 0098°C$ 00SL'C$ 000S°C$ 00058 0005°C$ 000$°C$ 000528 000$°C$ /M SON 082D [
S338Y TBJIBY AL
1107 107 6007 8007 L00T 9007 00T 7007 £007 7007 W/n
SIBEIQ WoJ 3sey SVXAL ‘ALNNOD SADANN A0
saex] JUE], ALIMOHLAY LLSRIHD SNdY0D 40 LU0

(ponpuneun) , A19VL

-47 -



TABLE 8 (Unaudited)

PORT OF CORPUS CHRISTI AUTHORITY
OF NUECES COUNTY, TEXAS

Ten Largest Customers
December 31, 2011 and 2002

WHARFAGE and DBOCKAGE REVENUE:

2011 2002
Wharfage and Wharfage and

Customer Dockage Revenue Rank % Dockage Revenue Rank %o
Valero $ 9,272,737 1 24.60% 5 3,877,537 2 23.87%
Citgo 6,940,053 2 18.41% 3,529,849 1 21.73%
Flint Hills 4,970,161 3 13.18% 1,940,967 3 11.95%
NuStar Logistics 2,036,496 4 5.40% - 0.00%
Bieht & Company 1,066,886 5 2.83% 334,408 9 2.06%
Max Shipping 882,359 6 2.34% - 0.00%
Equistar 780,319 7 2.07% 573,296 5 3.53%
Dix-Fairway 710,015 8 1.88% 396,402 8 - 2.44%
Boyd Campbell 682,041 9 1.81% 522,512 6 3.22%
Port Corpus Terminal 626,820 10 1.66% - -
Shamrock Logistics - - 1,058,957 4 6.52%
Aimcor - - 478,057 7 2.94%
Corpus Christi Day Cruise - - 273,213 10 1.68%

Subtotal (10 largest) 27,967,887 74.18% 12,985,198 79.94%
Other 9,728,849 - 25.82% 3,260,177 20.06%

Total 37,696,736 100.00% 16,245,375 100.00%
TONNAGE:

2011 2002

Customer Tonnage % Tonnage Rank %o
Valero 23,253,364 1 28.95% 21,711,488 2 26.82%
Citgo 23,210,483 2 28.90% 24,768,954 1 30.59%
Flint Hills 12,632,429 3 15.73% 9,949,604 3 12.29%
Sherwin Alumina 5,817,275 4 7.24% 4,892,005 5 6.04%
NuStar Logistics 2,640,415 5 3.29% - -
ADM/Growmark 2,428,773 6 3.02% - -
Interstate Grain 1,749,357 7 2.18% 1,065,395 9 1.32%
Occidental 1,699,239 9 2.12% 1,555,500 8 1.92%
Equistar 1,152,646 8 1.44% 1,978,448 7 2.44%
Koch Supply & Trading 767,481 10 0.96% - -
Koch Petroleum Group - - 6,058,066 4 7.48%
Shamrock Logistics - - 3,093,441 6 3.82%
Aimcor - - 796,762 10 0.98%

Subtotal (10 largest) 75,351,462 93.83% 75,869,663 93.71%
Other 4,958,755 6.17% 5,089,261 6.29%

Total 80,310,217 100.00% 80,958,924 100.00%

* Flint Hills was formerly Koch Petroleum

** NuStar Logistics was formerly Shamrock Logistics
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TABLE 12 (Unaudited)

PORT OF CORPUS CHRISTI AUTHORITY Principal Employers
OF NUECES COUNTY, TEXAS December 31,2011 and 2002

2011 2002*
Percent of Percent of
Number of Total MSA Number of Total MSA
Employer Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment

Corpus Christi Army Depot 5,800 1 2.83% - -
Corpus Christi ISD 5,178 2 2.53% - - -
Christus Spohn Health System 5,144 3 2.51% - - -
HEB Grocery Co. 5,000 4 2.44% - - -
City of Corpus Christi 3,171 5 1.55% - - -
Naval Air Station Corpus Christi 2,822 6 1.38% - - -
Bay, Ltd. 2,100 7 1.03% - - -
Driscoll Children's Hospital 1,800 8 0.88% - - -
Del Mar College 1,542 9 0.75% - - -
Corpus Christi Medical Center 1,300 10 0.64% - - -
Total 33,857 16.54% - .

Corpus Christi Regional Economic and Development Corporation
Bureau of Labor Statistics

* Information for 2002 not available
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TABLE 14 (Unaudited)

PORT OF CORPUS CHRISTI AUTHORITY
OF NUECES COUNTY, TEXAS

Capital Asset Statistics
Last Five Years

Harbor divisions

Turning basins

Corpus Christi Ship Channel (miles)
Authorized channel draft (feet)

General cargo docks
Covered docks
Open docks
Special public use dock
Covered storage (square feet)
Dockside rail access (docks)
Roll-orv/ Roll-off ramps

Liquid bulk docks
Ship
Barge

Bulk material docks
Gantry cranes
Unloading rate per hour (short tons)
Radial ship loaders
Loading rate per hour (short tons)

Layberth facilities/docks

Intermodal terminal
Open storage (acres)
Container handling machines

Bagging facilities
Grain
General purpose

Grain elevator
Bushel capacity (bushels)
Ship loading capacity per hour (bushels)
Truck unloading capacity per hour (bushels)
Railcar unloading capacity per hour (bushels)

Cotton warehouses
Covered storage (square feet)

Cold storage facilities
Refrigerated storage-chill and frozen (square feet)

Multi-purpose cruise terminal/meeting banquet center
Meeting rooms
Banquet hall
Outdoor plaza
Indoor square feet (approximate)
Outdoor square feet (approximate)

Industrial parks
Acreage
Barge canals

Land
Submerged (acres)
Emerged (acres)
Dredge Placement Areas
Open storage/development (acres)

Railroads
Railway (miles)

Security Command Center

Naval Station Ingleside
Land-emerged (acres)
Land-submerged (acres)
Wharfs and piers (linear feet)
Buildings-office/classrooms,barracks,warehouse {sq ft)

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

6 6 6 6 6

5 5 s 5
35 35 35 35 35
45 45 45 45 45
8 8 8 8 8
3 3 3 3 3
2 2 2 2 2
1 1 1 1 1
295,500 295,500 295,500 295,500 295,500
4 4 4 4 4
1 1 1 1 1
11 11 11 11 11

6 6 6
5 5 5 s 5
2 2 2 2 2
1 1 ! 1 1
600 600 600 600 600
1 1 1 1 1
1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500
3 3 3 3 3
1 1 1 1 1
23 25 28 28 30
2 2 2 2 2
2 2 2 2 2
1 1 1 i 1
I 1 1 1 1
I 1 1 1 1
5,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000
120,000 120,000 120,000 120,000 120,000
40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000
80,000 80,000 80,000 80,000 80,000
{ 1 i 1 1
575,000 575,000 575,000 575,000 575,000
1 1 1 1 1
100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000
1 1 1 1 1
5 5 5 s 5
1 1 1 1 1
1 1 1 1 1
24,000 24,000 24,000 24,000 24,000
50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000
1 1 1 1 1
318 318 318 318 318
2 2 2 2 2
18,750 18,750 18,750 18,750 18,750
6,250 6,250 6,250 6,250 6,256
4,688 4,688 4,688 4,688 4,688
2,400 2,400 2,400 2,400 2,400
26 35 37 37 42
1 ] 1 1 1
0 0 0 483 480
0 0 0 429 429
0 0 0 4050 3450
0 0 0 788,367 781,217
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TABLE 16 (Unaudited)

PORT OF CORPUS CHRISTI AUTHORITY

Schedule of Insurance in Force

OF NUECES COUNTY, TEXAS December 31, 2011
— Se— S—
Policy Liability
Details of Coverage Period Deductible Limits

All Risk Property 04/01/11-12 $4,000,000/$100,000 $ 125,000,000
Boiler and Machinery 04/01/11-12 50,000 1,000,000
5,000 30,000,000
Business Auto Liability 10/01/11-12 - 10,000,000
Group Travel Accident 01/11/11-14 - 1,000,000
Foreign Liability 10/01/11-12 - 1,000,000
Pollution Legal Liability 10/16/08-13 100,000 5,000,000
Non-owned Aircraft Liability 10/01/11-12 - 2,000,000
Marine Liability and Primary P&I 10/01/11-12 50,000 20,000,000
Firebarge Hull & Machinery 10/01/11-12 25,000 3,500,000
29' Safeboat Hull & Machinery 10/01/11-12 25,000 259,065
31" Safeboat Hull & Machinery 350,000
Firebarge and Excess P&I 10/01/11-12 80,000,000
excess 0f 20,000,000

Errors and Omissions Liability 10/01/11-12 10,000 5,000,000/10,000,000
Law Enforcement Liability 10/01/11-12 10,000 5,000,000/10,000,000
Executive Risk 10/01/10-13 - 250,000/1,250,000
Customs Bond - FTZ Operator 09/28/11-12 - 250,000
International Carrier Bond 02/16/11-12 - 100,000
Employee Fidelity (Crime) Bond 12/21/11-14 25,000 2,000,000
Public Officials Bonds (8) Varies - 5,000
Workers' Compensation 01/01/11-12 - Statutory
Corporate Fine Art 07/08/11-12 - 82,000
Terrorism 04/01/11-12 50,000 25,000,000



TABLE 17 (Unaudited)

PORT OF CORPUS CHRISTI AUTHORITY
OF NUECES COUNTY, TEXAS

Date of Incorporation:

Form of Government:

Number of Employees:

Geographic Location:

Area:

Population:

Elevation:

Tidal Data:
Average Water Level:
Inner Harbor

Tidal Range:
Inner Harbor
Aransas Pass

Aerial Clearance:
Harbor Bridge

Temperature:

Average Seasonal Rainfall:

Miscellaneous Statistical Data
December 31, 2011

1922

A public corporation and
political subdivision of
the State of Texas

170

Southeastern coast of Texas
on the Gulf of Mexico
approximately 150 miles
north of the Mexican Border

6,256 - Emergent acres

18,750 - Submerged acres

-57.

City of Nueces San Patricio

Year Corpus Christi County County

1920 10,522 22,807 11,386
1930 27,741 51,779 23,836
1940 57,301 92,661 28,871
1950 108,053 165,471 35,842
1960 167,690 221,573 45,021
1970 204,525 237,544 47,288
1980 232,119 268,215 58,013
1990 256,632 296,527 58,749
2000 277,454 313,645 67,138
2010 305,215 340,223 64,804

Sea level to 85 feet, average 35 feet

2.08 feet above Mean Low Tide (MLT)

Annual Average - 71°
January Average - 66°

Insignificant
1.5 feet

138 feet

July Average - 93°

304



TABLE 17 (Unaudited - Continued)

PORT OF CORPUS CHRISTI AUTHORITY Miscellaneous Statistical Data
OF NUECES COUNTY, TEXAS December 31, 2011

Public Docks:

Bulk liquid 11 - Main Harbor

Dry cargo 8§ - Main Harbor

Bulk materials 2 - Main Harbor
21

Private Docks:

Bulk liquid - Citgo 6 - Main Harbor
- Equistar | - Main Harbor
- Flint Hills 3 - Main Harbor
- Valero 3 - Main Harbor
- Occidental Chemical 1 - La Quinta
- Koch Gathering 1 - Ingleside

Dry cargo - Bay Inc. 2 - Main Harbor
- Heldenfels 1 - Main Harbor
- Texas Docks & Rail 2 - Main Harbor
- Texas Lehigh Cement 1 - Main Harbor
- Tor Minerals International, Inc. - Rincon

- Harbor Island
- Ingleside

1
- McDermott 1
- Gulf Marine Fabricators 1
- Kiewit Offshore Services, Inc. 1 - Ingleside
- Helix Energy Solutions 1 - LaQuinta
- Signet Maritime 1 - Jewell Fulton
Bulk materials - ADM/Growmark 1 - Main Harbor
- Interstate Grain 1 - Main Harbor
- Sherwin Alumina 1 - La Quinta
- Vulcan Materials 1 - Main Harbor
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Signing of memorandum of understanding
with Tianjin Port Authority

PORTCORPUS CHRISTI
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TABLE 21 (Unaudited)

PORT OF CORPUS CHRISTI AUTHORITY Debt Administration
OF NUECES COUNTY, TEXAS December 31, 2011

At December 31, 2011, the Authority had one debt issue outstanding. This issue included $7,250,000 in general revenue
bonds. The Authority has maintained an A rating from Standard and Poor’s Corporation and an A3 rating from

Moody’s Investor Service on general revenue bond issues.

The following is a statement of changes in long-term debt for the year ended December 31, 2011:

Table 4:
Beginning Ending Current
Balance Additions Reductions Balance Portion
Revenue bonds $ 8,515,000 $ - $ 1,265,000 $ 7,250,000 § 1,265,000
Accumulated Accretion 81,640 - 13,999 67,641
Total $ 859,40 $ - $ 1,278999 § 7,317,641 $ 1,265,600
At December 31, 2011, total debt service requirements are as follows:
Table 5:
Principal Interest Total
2012 $ 1,320,000 $ 351,850 §$ 1,671,850
2013 1,380,000 291,505 1,671,505
2014 1,445,000 226,345 1,671,345
2015 1,515,000 155,955 1,670,955
Thereafter 1,590,000 80,640 1,670,640
Total $ 7,250,000 $ 1,106,295 $ 8,356,295
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TABLE 22 (Unaudited)

PORT OF CORPUS CHRISTI AUTHORITY Notes Receivable
OF NUECES COUNTY, TEXAS December 31, 2011
Table 6:
A summary of changes in notes receivable for the year ended December 31, 2011, is as follows:
Beginning Ending Current
Balance Additions Maturities Balance Portion
Notes Receivable $ 4,048,169 § - $ 3203405 § 844,764 S 844,764

Notes Receivable as of December 31, 2011 is summarized as follows:

Principal
QOutstanding
$12,000,000 Note Receivable due in annual principal
installments; $844,764 due in 2012; interest at 8.0% $ 4,048,169
Less: Principal Prepayments 3,203,405
Principal Outstanding 844,764
Less: Current Maturities 844,764
Notes Receivable - Net $ -
Total note receivable requirements as of December 31, 2011, are as follows:
Principal Interest Total
2012 $ 844,764 % 67,581 $ 912,345
Thereafter - - -
Total $ 844,764 $ 67,581 § 912,345

Pursuant to a Construction and Installment Sale Agreement (Agreement) entered into on May 3, 1994, the Authority
agreed to construct crude storage facilities on premises leased to an Authority User, and then sell facilities to the User.
On January 12, 1995, the Authority sold their undivided right, title and interest in the crude storage facilities to the User,
and a Promissory Note (Note) was executed made payable to the Authority by the User in the amount of $12,000,000.

The Note is due and payable in twenty-one annual installments, the first installment being interest only and the
remaining twenty annual installments of equal principal and interest, at a rate of 8 percent, unless sooner paid. All
payments are applied first to interest with the remainder, if any, applied to unpaid principal.

Note payments are based on revenue received from wharfage fees collected by the Authority for crude oil moving across
the Authority’s Oil Dock 1 to the User’s crude storage facilities, and fifty percent of dockage fees collected by the
Authority for ships berthing at the Authority’s Oil Dock | for purpose of delivering crude oil to the User’s crude storage
facilities. Monthly amounts are credited to a debt service account that is used to make scheduled note payments when
due. In the event there are insufficient funds in the debt service account to meet scheduled note payments, the User is
required to make up any shortfall. Should a surplus exist, the excess is applied in inverse order against principal last
coming due on the note. In 2011, the Authority credited $1,338,267 of applicable revenue received from wharfage and
dockage fees collected to the debt service account.



TABLE 23 (Unaudited)

PORT OF CORPUS CHRISTI AUTHORITY Leases
OF NUECES COUNTY, TEXAS December 31, 2011
Table 7:

Operating Leases

The Authority leases to others certain land and improvements. These leases are classified as operating leases in
accordance with the criteria of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 13. As of December 31, 2011,
minimum lease payments under these operating leases that have initial or remaining non-cancelable lease terms in
excess of one year are as follows:

Years Ending

2012 $ 5,544,907
2013 4,752,243
2014 3,740,668
2015 3,021,042
2016 1,818,669
Thereafter 17,559,550
Total $ 36,437,079
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TABLE 25 (Unaudited)

PORT OF CORPUS CHRISTI AUTHORITY Debt Service Requirements
OF NUECES COUNTY, TEXAS December 31, 2011
Table 9:

Year Series 2002-A Bonds Series 2002-B Bonds

Ending Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total Grand Total
2012 755,000 206,485 961,485 565,000 145,365 710,365 1,671,850
2013 790,000 171,000 961,000 590,000 120,505 710,505 1,671,505
2014 825,000 132,685 957,685 620,000 93,660 713,660 1,671,345
2015 865,000 91,435 956,435 650,000 64,520 714,520 1,670,955
2016 910,000 47,320 957,320 680,000 33,320 713,320 1,670,640

$ 4145000 $ 648925 § 4,793,925 § 3,105000 § 457370 § 3,562,370 § 8,356,295

Average $ 1,671,259
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TABLE 26 (Unaudited)

PORT OF CORPUS CHRISTI AUTHORITY Pension Plan
OF NUECES COUNTY, TEXAS December 31, 2011
Table 10:

Plan Description

The Authority provides pension, disability, and death benefits for all its full-time employees through a nontraditional
defined benefit pension plan in the state-wide Texas County and District Retirement System (TCDRS). The Board of
Trustees of TCDRS is responsible for the administration of the statewide agent multiple-employer public employee
retirement system consisting of 618 cash-balance-account type defined benefit pension plans. TCDRS in the aggregate
issues a comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) on a calendar year basis. The CAFR is available upon written
request from the TCDRS Board of Trustees at P.O. Box 2034, Austin, Texas 78768-2034.

The plan provisions are adopted by the governing body of the Authority, within the options available in the state statutes
governing TCDRS (TCDRS Act). Members can retire at ages 60 and above with 10 or more years of service or with 30
years regardless of age or when the sum of their age and years of service equals 80 or more. Members are vested after
10 years but must leave their accumulated contributions in the plan to receive any employer-financed benefit. Members
who withdraw their personal contributions in a lump sum are not entitled to any amounts contributed by the employer.

Benefit amounts are determined by the sum of the employee’s contributions to the plan, with interest, and employer-
financed monetary credits. The level of these monetary credits is adopted by the governing body of the Authority within
the actuarial constraints imposed by the TCDRS Act so that the resulting benefits can be expected to be adequately
financed by the employer’s commitment to contribute. At retirement, death, or disability, the benefit is calculated by
converting the sum of the employee’s accumulated contributions and the employer-financed monetary credits to a
monthly annuity using annuity purchase rates prescribed by the TCDRS Act.

Contributions

The Authority has elected the Annually Determined Contribution Rate plan provisions of the TCDRS Act, and under this
Act the contribution rate is actuarially determined annually. The actuarially determined rate for 2011 was 7.33 percent,
however the governing body of the Authority adopted the rate of 11 percent and the contribution rate for employees of 7
percent. Contributions made by the Authority in excess of the actuarially determined rate are classified as net pension
asset. Employee and Authority contributions were $737,217 and $1,158,484, respectively for the year ended December
31, 2011. Both the employees and the Authority make monthly contributions.

Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation
The Authority’s annual pension costs were $771,971 and the actual contributions for its employees were $1,158,484.
Three-year trend information is as follows:

Percentage
Years Ended Annual of APC Net Pension
December 31, Pension Cost Contributed  Obligation
2011 $ 771,971 100.00% $ -
2010 § 959,095 100.00% $ -
2009 935,773 100.00% $ -
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TABLE 26 (Unaudited — Continued)

PORT OF CORPUS CHRISTI AUTHORITY Pension Plan
OF NUECES COUNTY, TEXAS December 31, 2011

Table 10 (Continued):

The latest actuarial valuation for the Authority employees was completed as of December 31, 2010. The actuarial cost

method and significant assumptions underlying the actuarial calculations are as follows:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age

Asset Valuation Method SAF: 10-year smoothed value
ESF: Fund value

Projected Annual Salary Increases 5.4% average

Assumed Rate of Return on Investments 8.00%

Inflation Factor 3.5%

Cost of Living Adjustment 0.0%

Amortization Method:
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability Level percentage of payroll, closed
Remaining Amortization Period:

Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability 6.7 years

Schedule of Funding

Schedule of funding progress for the Pension Plan for the employees of the Authority is as follows:

Actuarial Annual Percentage of
Valuation Date Actuarial Accrued Funded Covered Covered
December 31, Value of Assets Liability Unfunded Ratio Payroll Payroll
2010 $ 21,744295 § 26,372,629 $ 4628334 8245% § 11,840,675 39.09%
2009 20,143,863 24,899,158 4,755,295  80.90% 11,397,962 41.72%
2008 18,097,936 23,421,983 5,324,047  77.27% 10,298,956 51.70%
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TABLE 27 (Unaudited)

PORT OF CORPUS CHRISTI AUTHORITY Current Investments
OF NUECES COUNTY, TEXAS December 31, 2011
Table 11:

The Authority’s investments at December 31, 2011, are shown below:

Carrying Fair
Value Value Category
Investments:
Certificates of Deposit $ 5535450 $ 5,535,450 |
Total investments $ 5535450 $§ 5,535,450

Temporary investments shown as cash equivalents:
Local government pool-TEXPOOL
Total temporary investments shown as cash equivalents

©s
©3

28,764,942
28,764,942

28,764,942 Pooled
28,764,942

©“
2
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CERTIFIED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL
CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

March 30, 2012

Port Commissioners
Port of Corpus Christi Authority
Of Nueces County, Texas

We have audited the basic financial statements of the Port of Corpus Christi Authority, as of and for
the year ended December 31, 2011, and have issued our report thereon dated March 30, 2012. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Authority’s internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of ex pressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s
internal control over financial reporting, Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Authority’s internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect
and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the
entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses,
as defined above.

-7l -



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority’s financial statements are free
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with (hose
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results
of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of Port Commissioners, management, and

federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone
other than these specified parties.

Colear., 9»&»%»% (Jpodr
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE
WITH OMB IRCULAR A-133

March 30, 2012

Port Commissioners
Port of Corpus Christi Authority
Of Nueces County, Texas

Compliance

We have audited the Port of Corpus Christi Authority’s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and
material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31,201 1. The Authority’s
major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule
of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants
applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the Authority’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the Authority’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States,
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Authority’s compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not
provide a legal determination on the Authority’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the Port of Corpus Christi Authority complied, in all material respects, with the
requirements referred to above that are applicable to its major federal programs for the year ended December
31,2011,



Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal programs.
In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Authority’s internal control over compliance with
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major program in order to determine our auditing
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control
over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not eXpress an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control over compliance.

Adeficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a controf over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that
material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over comphiance
that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies
in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Port Commissioners. management,

federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be, and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

W' 97&#.-00\&‘:' (JJW

-4 -



I

[S)

0.

8.

9.

PORT OF CORPUS CHRISTI AUTHORITY

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2011

Summary of Audit Results:

The auditor’s report expresses an unqualified opinion on the basic financial statements of the Port
of Corpus Christi Authority.

No significant deficiencies or material weaknesses relating to the audit of the financial statements
are reported in the “Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards.”

No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of the Authority, which would
be required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, were disclosed
during the audit.

No significant deficiencies or material weaknesses relating to the audit of the major federal award
programs are reported in the “Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance with Requirements
that Could Have a Direct and Material Effect on Each Major Federal Program and on Internal
Control over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133.”

The auditor’s report on compliance for the major Federal award programs for the Authority
expresses an unqualified opinion on all major programs.

No audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with Section 510(a) of OMB
Circular A-133 are reported in this schedule.

The programs tested as major programs included:

U.S. Department of Transportation — Passed Through Texas State Department of Transportation
Federal Aid Highway Program (CFDA — 20.205)

U.S. Department of Homeland Security
Port Security Grant (CEDA — 97.056)
ARRA Port Security Grant (CFDA - 97.116)

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
National Clean Diesel Emissions Reduction Program (CFDA — 66.039)

The dollar threshold for distinguishing Type A and Type B programs was $300,000.

The Port was determined to be a low-risk auditee.

Il Findings Related to the Financial Statements - None

IIL Findings and questioned cost for Federal awards - None
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PORT OF CORPUS CHRISTI AUTHORITY

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 201 1

The audit disclosed no findings required to be reported.
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PORT OF CORPUS CHRISTI AUTHORITY OF NUECES COUNTY, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL EXPENDITURES OF AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

Program Title

Federal Assistance

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Direct Programs
National Clean Diesel Funding Assistance Program
Total U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

U.S. Department of Homeland Security
Direct Programs
Port Security Grant #6
Port Security Grant #7
Port Security Grant #7 Supplemental
Port Security Grant #8
Port Security Grant #9
ARRA Port Security Grant
Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security

U.S. Department of Transportation
Passed through Texas State Department of Transportation
ARRA Joe Fulton International Trade Corridor
Total U.S. Department of Transportation

Total Federal and passed through assistance

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.

CFDA Number

-77 -

66.039

97.056
97.056
97.056
97.056
97.056
97.116

20.205

Grant Number

DE-00F11601-0

2006-GB-T6-0090
2007-GB-T7-0033
2007-GB-T7-K038
2008-GB-T8-K129
2009-PU-T9-K049
2009-PU-R1-0173

CSJ0916-35-156

Expenditures

606,588

606,588

2,035,543
1,357,083
905,917
135,029
19,501
2,209

4,455,282

510,370

510,370

5,572,240




PORT OF CORPUS CHRISTI AUTHORITY OF NUECES COUNTY, TEXAS
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

General

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activity of all
Federal financial assistance programs of Port of Corpus Christi Authority of Nueces County,
Texas (Authority). The Authority’s reporting entity is defined in the Notes to the Authority’s
financial statements. All Federal financial assistance received directly from Federal agencies and
passed through other governmental agencies is included on the schedule.

Basis of Accounting

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented using the accrual
basis of accounting, which is described in the Notes to the Authority’s financial statements.
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